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Corporate Profile and Recent Development

TEBNRIAIERE

Corporate Profile

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 1169)
(the “Company”), a subsidiary of Haier Group, is listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the research, development,
production and sale of washing machines and water
heaters under the brand name of “Haier”.

Founded in 1984, Haier Group is headquartered in
Qingdao, Shangdong Province, the PRC and is today
one of the world’s leading white goods home appliance
manufacturers. The products of Haier Group are now
sold in over 100 countries. Haier ranked the first among
Fortune China’s the World’s Most Admired Companies
in 2007, and number one among electronic and electric
industry. Haier is also an official sponsor of the 2008
Beijing Olympic Games for white goods home appliances.

Recent Development

The Group has completed the acquisition of the remaining
30% interest in Haier Indesit (front loading washing
machines business) from the ltalian partner in December
2007. The acquisition will enable the Group to have better
and more effective management and control over Haier
Indesit, enable more effective sharing of resources with
other subsidiaries of the Group and thus improving our
operating efficiencies.

In the past, the Group had to pay a trademark licence fee
to the parent company Haier Group at a rate of 0.8% of
certain sales of the Group (excluding the front loading
washing machines and water heaters businesses) in order
to use certain trademarks registered in the names of
members of the Haier Group for its top loading machines
business. In order to facilitate further growth of the Group,
the Haier Group agreed to waive trademark licence fee
for the company’s top loading washing machine business
with effect from 1 January 2008. The waiver is expected
to improve financial performance of the Group from 2008
onwards.
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Simplified Corporate Structure
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information
ANEEH
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Chairman’s Letter
F R

Overview

The Group continued to build up its core strengths in
2007. The completion of the acquisition of the front
loading washing machine and water heater businesses
from the Company’s controlling shareholders, Haier
Group Corporation and Qingdao Haier Investment and
Development Co., Ltd together with their subsidiaries
(collectively the “Haier Group”), in December 2006
significantly broadened the Group’s revenue and earnings
basis in 2007. In addition, the booming PRC economy
results in significant growth in consumer spending.
Coupled with measures taken by the Group to rationalize
its cost structure and fine-tune its business model to
enhance operational efficiency, the Group is able to
achieve satisfactory results in 2007.

Group Results

Turnover from continuing operations amounted
to HK$8,549 million, representing an increase of
approximately 23.9% from HK$6,902 million in 2006.
The Group continues to maintain leading positions in the
washing machine and water heater markets in the PRC,
with respective market share of approximately 31.9%
and 20.4% in 2007 according to China Market Monitor
(a market research company based in the PRC). EBITDA
margin improved from 4.3% in 2006 to 4.9% in 2007 while
operating margin also improved from 3.2% in 2006 to
3.9% in 2007 as a result of our launch of innovative high
value added products and improvement in operational
efficiency.

Excluding the net profit from the discontinued mobile
handset operation of HK$103 million (which mainly
arose from the gain on disposal of this business) in the
previous period in 2006, profit for the year from continuing
operations increased by approximately 22.8% as
compared to 2006, reaching HK$225.7 million in 2007.
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Chairman’s Letter
F R

Outlook

In December 2007, the Group acquired the remaining 30%
interest in Haier Indesit (Qingdao) Washing Machine Co.,
Ltd. and Haier Indesit (Qingdao) Electrical Appliance Co.,
Ltd. (collectively “Haier Indesit”), which are engaged in the
manufacture and sale of front loading washing machines,
from the ltalian partner Indesit Group. The acquisition is
expected to enable the Group to have better and more
effective management control over Haier Indesit, enable
more effective sharing of resources with other subsidiaries
of the Group and thus improving our operating efficiencies
from 2008 onwards. In addition, in the past, the Group
had to pay a trademark licence fee to the parent company
Haier Group at a rate of 0.8% of sales of top loading
washing machines. In order to facilitate further growth
of the Group, the Haier Group agreed to waive such
trademark licence fee, which represented approximately
17.8% of the profit from continuing operations of the
Group in 2007, with effect from 1 January 2008. The
waiver is expected to improve financial performance of the
Group from 2008 onwards.

Despite measures being taken by the PRC government
to cool down the economy, we are still seeing substantial
growth in consumer spending and we remain optimistic
on the washing machine and water heater markets in the
PRC, in particular in the 3rd and 4th tier cities and rural
area in view of the growing brand consciousness of the
consumers in these markets, and the government’s policy
to improve living standard in the rural area. In addition,
although sales for exports currently only account for
approximately 10% of total revenue, with Haier being a
sponsor to the Beijing Olympic Games in 2008, we believe
our brand recognition will be significantly enhanced in
overseas markets, which is expected to help our growth
in export sales from 2008 onwards. Coupled with the
acquisition of the remaining 30% interest in Haier Indesit
and the waiver of trademark licence fee as mentioned
above, we are optimistic about the prospects of the Group
in the forthcoming year.

Appreciation

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all my
fellow directors and staff for their dedicated services,
contributions and support during the year.

By Order of the Board of
Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd.
Yang Mian Mian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 April 2008
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHREEE

The directors and senior management of the Group as at
the date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. YANG Mian Mian, aged 66, has served as the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company since
January 2005. Ms. Yang is responsible for determining
corporate strategies and overall management of the
Group. She graduated from Shandong Industrial Institute,
which is now known as Shandong University, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1963. As one of the
founders of the Haier Group, she has been in charge of
the overall management of the white goods business
since 1984. She is currently the president of Haier Group
Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and the chairman of Qingdao
Haier Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (the “A-Share Company”)). Ms. Yang is also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. In 2006,
she was elected by Forbes as one of “The World’s Most
Powerful Women”.

Mr. WU Ke Song, aged 57, has served as the Deputy
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company since
December 2001 and is also a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. Mr. Wu is responsible for
worldwide business development of the Group and liaison
with relevant government officials. He graduated from
Shandong Industrial Institute, the PRC which is now
known as Shandong University, the PRC in 1974 and
joined the Haier Group in 1984. He is also a vice chairman
of Haier Corp and a director of a subsidiary of the Group.

Mr. LIANG Hai Shan, aged 41, has served as an Executive
Director of the Company since December 2001. Mr. Liang
is mainly responsible for strategic procurement and overall
quality control of products of the Group. He received
a Bachelor’'s degree of Industry from the Xian Jiaotong
University, the PRC and has 19 years of experience in
the manufacture of household electrical appliances, in
particular in raw material procurement function and white
goods business. He is also a senior vice president of Haier
Corp.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHREEE

Executive Directors (Cont’d)

Mr. CAO Chun Hua, aged 39, has served as an Executive
Director of the Company since January 2005. Mr. Cao is
currently the General Manager of the Group’s washing
machine business. He graduated from Hangzhou
Electronic Industry College, the PRC with a Bachelor’s
degree in 1991. He joined the Haier Group in 1995 and has
since held a number of senior positions in the washing
machine business. He is also a vice president of Haier
Corp and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. CUl Shao Hua, aged 50, has served as an Executive
Director of the Company since November 2002 and is a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company.
Mr. Cui is responsible for the Group’s corporate finance
function. Mr. Cui graduated from Jilin Institute of Finance
and Commerce, the PRC in 1982. He joined the Haier
Group in 1993 and has over 20 years of experience in
financial management and listed companies’ operations.
He is also a director and a deputy chairman of the A-Share
Company, a vice president of Haier Corp and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He is currently also
a director of Changjiang Securities Company Limited (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).

Mr. SUN Jing Yan, aged 37, has served as an Executive
Director of the Company since March 2007. Mr. Sun
has been the general manager of the Haier Group’s
Electrothermal Product Division since 2005 and is mainly
responsible for the operation of the Group’s water heater
business. Mr. Sun graduated from Shangdong Institute
of Light Industry, the PRC in 1993 with a Bachelor of
Engineering in Machine Design and Manufacture. He
joined the Haier Group in 1993 and has since held a
number of senior positions in the Electrothermal Appliance
Department of the Haier Group. Mr. Sun is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 14 years
of extensive experience in water heater business.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHREEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Yinong, aged 45, has served as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since January
2005 and is a member of both the audit committee and
the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr. Wu
graduated from Portland State University in the United
States of America with a Master’'s degree in Business
Administration in 1994. He is currently Executive Director
of China Merchants Securities (Hong Kong) Co., Limited
and the Head of Investment Banking Department. He has
been in the investment banking industry for more than 10
years.

Mr. YU Hon To, David, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 21
June 2007. Mr. Yu is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
was formerly a partner of an international accounting firm
with extensive experience in corporate finance. Mr. Yu is a
founder and a director of MCL Capital Limited (previously
known as Management Capital Limited), which specialises
in direct investment and financial advisory activities, and
also sits on the boards of several listed companies in
Hong Kong.

Dr. Liu Xiao Feng, aged 45, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
on 21 June 2007. He is currently Managing Director of
DBS Asia Capital Limited. He has worked in various
international financial institutions since 1993, including N.
M. Rothschild & Sons and JP Morgan, and has many years
of experience in corporate finance. Dr. Liu has a Ph.D and
Master degrees from the Faculty of Economics, University
of Cambridge and a Bachelor of Economics from Sichuan
Institute of Finance and Economics, China. Dr. Liu is
currently also an independent non-executive director of
CNPC (Hong Kong) Limited and Honghua Group Limited,
both of which are publicly listed companies on the Stock
Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHREEE

Senior Management

Mr. YIP Wai Ming, aged 43, joined the Company in
2004 as Chief Financial Officer. He is also the Company
Secretary and Qualified Accountant of the Company.
Mr. Yip has more than 20 years of experience in finance
and accounting, and had held senior positions in an
international accounting firm, a major European bank
and listed companies in Hong Kong. He graduated from
the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in
Social Sciences and from the University of London with a
Bachelor’s degree in Law. He is an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHEN Lu Cheng, aged 38, graduated from College
of Constructive Material in Shandong, the PRC with a
Bachelor’s degree in Engineering in 1992. He joined the
Haier Group in 1995 and has since held a number of
senior positions in the washing machine division. He is
currently responsible for production management of the
washing machine business of the Group.

Mr. LU Pei Shi, aged 44, graduated from Shandong
Agricultural and Mechanical College, the PRC with a
Bachelor’s degree in 1987. He joined the Haier Group in
1995 and has since held a number of senior positions in
the washing machine business of the Haier Group. He is
currently responsible for the research and development
function of the washing machine business of the Group.
He is a member of the Washing Machine Sub-committee
of the International Electrotechnical Commission.

Mr. ZHANG Zheng Tao, aged 33, graduated from
Shangdong Light Industry University, the PRC with a
Bachelor’s degree of Material Engineering. He joined the
Haier Group in 1996 and has held a number of senior
positions in the water heater division. He is currently a
director of Electrothermal Appliance Department.

BREEE

REEARLE 8353 R-ZZWFMARRFH
EUBRE  WERRRBAZRAMEREER
SEET c EEERUBBREFITHREE-TF
KE o BEERN-—EBSEET  —XAER
MBTREBSRET LA HESRBAAL - KE
ENEBRE  ERUSNBEL2M 0 THUE
MARBERBLEN - WABEBETMAES
8 RERHFLARSTHASEREERTEF
MEMHEEEs -

BREMEE @ 388 ' R—ANZFREERPE L
REEMBTXSR  BEIRSTBY - HR
—ANBFEMABEER - I B LRI
FINZEER FREEEESEEATRKEL 2
LEEH

EMEEE 44 R-ANEFEXERH
BILRBEEWMCSEE  BEELEN - TR
—AhEFMAEEER - I B M HERRBEE
BNZHEER - WEAEANREIRNEER 2
ERRABITE RERBARETZESARED
RifEEETHEAER -

RIESEE 385 FEERPTEILRETERX
2. BEMHIRELEM - TR —NAKREM
ABHEEE TARBERKRMBFANZRE
B WRAERFARIR -

- Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2007
@ BHEREEERAT —TBLFFR






Global Brand
5% % o b8




- Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2007
©r BHEREEERAT T LEFR

Financial Review
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Business Review

Washing Machine Business

The Group’s washing machine business comprises
the manufacture and sale of top loading and front
loading washing machines, which together accounted
for approximately 81% of total revenue for 2007 (2006:
81.9%). The Group continues to strengthen its dominant
market position in the PRC with strong revenue growth
of 22.6% from HK$5,651 million in 2006 to HK$6,927
million in 2007. Operating margin remained stable at
3.9% in 2007. As a result, operating profit grew by 22.9%
from HK$221 million in 2006 to HK$272 million in 2007.
The growth in both volume and profitability was made
possible due largely to our well-received marketing
programs and successful product positioning. In addition,
our sophisticated design and technology were reaffirmed
during the period by winning awards such as the red
dot product design award in Germany, which is an
internationally recognized quality label for excellence in
design.

The front loading washing machine business, in which
we increased our stake from 70% to 100% in December
2007 as mentioned above, is in particular an area with
significant growth potential, with 2007 sales of HK$1,689
million, an increase of 34.3% compared with 19.2% for
top loading washing machines, and accounted for 24.4%
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of washing machines’ sales, up from 22.3% in 2006. This
type of washing machine is more popularly used in Europe
and has higher average selling price. In the PRC, they are
targeting the higher end of the market and have only been
introduced to market for a relatively shorter period of time.
With rising income level and spending power of consumers
in the PRC, we believe there is significant growth potential
for these products.

To cater for our rapid growth in sales, a new factory with
annual production capacity of approximately 1 million
units has been constructed in Chongqging, the PRC
and production has commenced in the first quarter of
2007, boasting our total annual production capacity to
approximately 8 million units.

We will continue to enhance our competitiveness by
focusing on developing our R&D capabilities so as to bring
more differentiated products with value added features
to the market to improve our margin. We will also put
particular emphasis on environmentally friendly concept
which we believe is the global trend for all consumer
products. Looking forward, the Directors are confident
that the washing machine business will continue to
perform satisfactorily in the years ahead.

Water Heater Business

The water heater business, which accounted for
approximately 19% of Group revenue in 2007 (2006:
18.1%), also posted strong growth in both volume and
profitability. Revenue grew by approximately 29.7%,
reaching HK$1,623 million in 2007. Operating margin
improved from 3.5% in 2006 to 5.3% in 2007. As a result,
operating profit increased by 95% from HK$44.2 million in
2006 to HK$86.4 million in 2007.
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The Group produces three types of water heaters, namely,
electrical water heaters, gas water heaters and solar
power water heaters. Electrical water heaters and gas
water heaters are currently the predominant types of
water heaters sold in the PRC while the market share of
solar power water heaters is still insignificant. However,
we are seeing significant market potential for solar water
heaters due to their environmentally friendly, safety and
energy efficient features. With our extensive experience
and expertise and strong emphasis on R&D, we believe
we would be able to take advantage of the growth
opportunities in this market in the long run.

In recognition of our technology excellence, the Group’s
patented PTOIO technology (FiEi&#1i1), a safe care
water heater technology, which ensures users’ safety in
case of electricity leakage, was included in the 2006 IEC
standard proposal (IECEFIE#IRE), and was further
recognized as the national standard in the PRC with effect
from July 2007. Going forward, the Group will follow its
“safety-based products” philosophy in the design of water
heater products and continue to lead the industry in safety
technologies.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has maintained a healthy financial and liquidity
position with a current ratio of 114% as at 31 December
2007 (2006: 115%). As at 31 December 2007, the Group
had a cash balance of HK$595 million (2006: HK$627
million); bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$215 million (2006: HK$137 million) of which
approximately HK$62 million (2006: HK$58 million) was
due within one year and approximately HK$153 million
(2006: HK$ 79 million) was due over one year; and zero-
coupon 3-year convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”)
with a face value of HK$170 million (2006: HK$170 million)
and a liability element of HK$169 million (2006: HK$162
million) and was due to mature on 27 January 2008. The
Convertible Notes were fully converted into 94,444,444
shares of the Company at a conversion price of HK$1.8
per share in January 2008.
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Due to our focus on cashflow management, the Group
has been able to maintain a very strong cash position with
a net cash balance (cash balance less borrowings and
Convertible Notes) of HK$211 million as at 31 December
2007.

There is no material effect of seasonality on the Group’s
borrowing requirements.

The Group had capital commitments amounting to HK$18
million as at 31 December 2007 (2006: HK$252 million), all
being contracted capital commitments, which were mainly
related to purchase of machinery for the expansion in
production capacity of the Group’s businesses.

Capital Structure and Gearing Ratio

Capital Reorganisation

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at a special general meeting of the Company
held on 7 March 2007, the Company has undertaken
a capital reorganisation involving capital reduction
and share consolidation effected on 8 March 2007 as
summarized below:

(1) Capital Reduction: a reduction in nominal value of
each of then issued share from HK$0.1 to HK$0.01
by cancellation of HK$0.09 paid up capital on each
of then issued share.

(2) Share Consolidation: every 10 issued share of
HK$0.01 each resulting from the said capital
reduction was consolidated into 1 share of HK$0.1
each.

The details of the said capital reorganisation are set out in
(a) two announcements of the Company dated 24 January
2007 and 8 March 2007 respectively; and (b) a circular of
the Company dated 6 February 2007.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2007, the Group maintained a gearing
ratio (defined as total borrowings plus Convertible Notes
over net assets) of 41% (2006: 37%).
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Treasury Policies

The Group employs a conservative approach to cash
management and risk controls. Most of the Group’s
receipts and payments are in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. Cash is generally placed in short term deposits
denominated either in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars.
As at 31 December 2007, the Convertible Notes were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and most of the
Group’s borrowings were denominated in Renminbi and
were principally made on a floating rate basis. Foreign
currency risk is largely, though not fully, mitigated as
liabilities in Renminbi will be substantially matched by the
Group’s earnings, most of which are from domestic sales
in the PRC and are denominated in Renminbi and only
approximately 10% of the Group’s revenue are from export
sales and are denominated in other currencies. The Group
does not have any significant interest rate risk, as the
Group has an overall net cash balance. The Group does
not have any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31
December 2007 was approximately 15,500, representing
an increase of approximately 98.7% as compared to
31 December 2006 and total staff costs for the year
amounted to approximately HK$482 million, representing
an increase of approximately 138% as compared to 2006,
which was mainly due to the Group’s establishing its
own sales and distribution channel for domestic sales
of front loading washing machines and water heaters
with effect from 1 January 2007 upon completion of
the abovementioned acquisition of these businesses in
December 2006.

The Group ensures that the remuneration packages for its
employees are competitive and employees are generally
remunerated with a fixed monthly income, which are
normally reviewed on an annual basis, plus discretionary
performance bonuses.
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Material Acquisition and Disposal of

Subsidiaries and Associates

On 4 September 2007, the Group entered into
agreements to acquire the remaining 30% interest in
Haier Indesit (Qingdao) Washing Machine Co., Ltd. and
Haier Indesit (Qingdao) Electrical Appliance Co., Lid.,
which are engaged in the manufacture and sale of front
loading washing machines, from Indesit Group, for an
aggregate consideration of €14,310,000 (approximately
HK$162,977,000). The acquisition was completed in
December 2007.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) and
the management (the “Management”) of Haier Electronics
Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) recognise that sound
corporate practices are crucial to the efficient operation
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) and the safeguarding of our shareholders’
interests. In this regard, the Board attaches great priority
to reinforce the Company’s corporate governance
standards with emphasis on transparency, accountability
and independence in order to enhance our long-term
shareholders’ value.

The Company has, throughout the year ended 31
December 2007, complied with most of the applicable
code provisions (the “Code Provision(s)”) and principles
under the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) except for certain deviations as described
below. This report describes the Company’s corporate
governance practices, explains its applications of and
deviations from the CG Code, together with considered
reasons for such deviations.

Board of Directors

Composition

The Board currently comprises six executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors (the “INED(s)”).
The Directors are well-versed in respective areas such
as legal, accounting and finance, business management
and industry knowledge and the Board as a whole has
achieved an appropriate balance of skills and experience.
The Directors’ biographical details are set out on pages 10
to 13 of this annual report.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, there is no
financial or family relationship among the Board members.
All of them are free to exercise their independent judgment
on all matters concerning the Company.
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Delegation by the Board

The Directors are collectively responsible for setting the
Group’s strategies, providing leadership and guidance
to put them into effect, reviewing and monitoring the
performance of the Group and are accountable to the
Company’s shareholders. To maximise the effectiveness
of the Group’s operations, the Board has delegated
management and administration of the Group’s daily
operations to the executive Directors and the Management
while reserving several important matters for its approval.
To this end, the Board has adopted written guidelines
(the “Guidelines”) laying down the division of functions
between the Board and the Management (including the
executive Directors for the purpose of the Guidelines).

Pursuant to the Guidelines, the major functions of the
Board and the Management are summarized as follows:

The Board is principally responsible for:

1. determining the overall strategy and approving
annual operating budget of the Group;

2. reviewing all significant policies of the Group;

3. monitoring the performance of the Management to
ensure that the business operations of the Group are
properly planned and undertaken;

4. approving interim and annual results of the Group
based on recommendations made by the audit
committee of the Company;

5. approving material contracts and transactions for
which the Management is required to obtain the
Board’s prior approval; and

6. subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules,
approving transactions in which connected person(s)
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Group is/are
considered having a material conflict of interests.
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)
Delegation by the Board (Cont’d)
The Management is principally responsible for:

1. exercising all such other powers and perform all
such other acts as may be exercised and performed
by the Directors, save and except for those that may
specifically be reserved by the Board and/or the
committees set up by the Board for decision and
implementation; or those that may only be exercised
by the Board pursuant to The Companies Act of
Bermuda, the Bye-laws of the Company, the Listing
Rules and/or the Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Repurchases;

2. formulating and implementing policies for business
activities, internal controls and administration of the
Company;

3. planning and deciding the Company’s strategies on
its business activities; and

4. keeping proper written records of its decisions taken
which may be inspected by any members of the
Board or the Board committees upon request.

The Board reviews those arrangements and the Guidelines
on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate
to the needs of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”)

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
CEO should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Currently, the Company does not have
any person holding the title of CEO. Ms. Yang Mian Mian
is the Chairman of the Board and is also performing the
functions of CEO. The Board meets regularly to consider
major matters affecting the business and operations of
the Group. The Board considers that this structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between
the Board and the Management and believes that this
structure enables the Group to make and implement
decision promptly and efficiently.
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) (Cont’d)
Under the Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman
of the Board did not attend the 2007 annual general
meeting of the Company as she had overseas business
trip at that time.

INEDs

The INEDs have the same duties of care and skill
and fiduciary duties as the executive Directors. They
are expressly identified as such in all corporate
communications that disclose the names of the Directors.

The INEDs are experienced professionals with expertise
in areas of accounting and finance. With their professional
knowledge and experience, the INEDs advise the
Company on its operation and management; provide
independent opinion on the Company’s connected/
continuing connected transactions; participate in the
Company’s audit committee meetings and remuneration
committee meetings. The INEDs also contribute to provide
adequate checks and balance to protect the interests of
the Company and the Company’s shareholders as a whole,
and to promote the development of the Company.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs pursuant to Rule
3.138 of the Listing Rules and considers that all INEDs to
be independent as the date of this report.

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for specific terms, subject to re-
election. Currently, all INEDs are not appointed for a
specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
at the annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws (the “Bye-
laws”). As such, the Board considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance practices are no less exacting than
those in the CG Code.
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Supply of and access to information

Newly appointed Directors will receive induction packages
containing the duties and responsibilities of directors
under the Listing Rules and other applicable rules and
regulations.

All the Directors are briefed and updated from time to time
on the latest legislative and regulatory developments to
ensure that they are fully aware of their responsibilities
under the Listing Rules, applicable legal and regulatory
requirements.

In order to ensure that their duties can be properly
discharged, the Directors are entitled to seek advice from
independent professional advisers whenever deemed
necessary by them at the Company’s expense.

Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2007, apart from
consents obtained by means of written resolutions of all
the Board members, the Board had held four scheduled
meetings at approximately quarterly intervals to review
and approve, among other things, the 2006 annual results
and 2007 interim results, discloseable and connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions of
the Group. The Company’s board meetings (the “Board
Meeting(s)”) are permitted to be held by means of
telephone or other means of electronic communication
under the Bye-laws.

Reasonable notices are served and comprehensive
information is provided to the Board members in advance
of all the Board Meetings in order to enable them to make
informed decisions on all matters transacted at the Board
Meetings.

The proceedings of the Board Meetings are conducted by
the Chairman of the Board or another Executive Director
who ensures that sufficient time is allowed for discussion
among the Directors and equal opportunities are being
given to the Directors to express their views and share
their concerns.
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Board Meetings (Cont’d)

The Company Secretary/Qualified Accountant attends
the Board Meetings to advise Directors on corporate
governance practices, and statutory compliance,
accounting and financial issues whenever deemed
necessary by the Board.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing
minutes recording all matters transacted and resolved at
the Board Meetings. All the Board Minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection by the
Directors.

The following table shows the attendance of the Directors
at the scheduled Board Meetings during the year ended
31 December 2007:

Executive Directors: HITES

Ms. Yang Mian Mian (Chairman) BB L LT (EFE)
Mr. Wu Ke Song (Deputy Chairman) REREE(BIERE)
Mr. Liang Hai Shan 2Lk E

Mr. Cao Chun Hua BEEELE

Mr. Cui Shao Hua ELERYE

Mr. Sun Jing Yan* BRERERE"

Mr. Chai Yong Sen** ek AR E

Mr. Song Chun Guang** REKFE
INEDs: BYFYITES :
Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark*** MRERBR A
Mr. Fung Hoi Wing, Henry*** BB
Mr. Wu Yinong KRTEEE

Mr. Yu Hon To, David**** BEE oA
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng**** 2 Bz U2 17 = >

*

*%

*k K

Kok ke ke

appointed on 8 March 2007
resigned on 15 February 2007
resigned on 21 June 2007
appointed on 21 June 2007

EEg#W)

ExgeR (@)

MESERRAFTE ARAWE/SERSF
MEHFESEER  UNREXERER 8
BT SR RUBEEEREZR -

NANELERREBLHE  HITESSER
LFEERZERZ —IEEH - AAWESREMN
BRESEERLE  FRLETHESER -

TERAEE-_STtE+-_A=t+—ALEE
o EERENESRRRZMEE |

No. of the Board Meetings attended/held
HE / BT2ESESRAH

2/4
1/4
1/4
2/4
4/4
2/4
0/0
0/0

2/2
2/2
4/4
2/2
2/2

* R-ZZSLtE=AN\BEZF
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Board Meetings (Cont’d)|

It is challenging to arrange the Board Meeting that fits in
with the tight and busy schedules of all the Directors. In
particular, as certain of the executive Directors devote
considerable time and efforts to the management and
operation of the Group’s business, they were only able to
attend some of the Board Meetings in person and their
attendance rate at the Board Meetings were relatively low
during the fiscal year of 2007. To enable all the Directors
to keep abreast of the Group’s latest development and to
discharge their duties properly, the Company Secretary
will brief the Directors on those matters transacted at
the Board Meetings that they were unable to attend. In
addition, draft and final versions of the Board Minutes will
be sent to all Directors for their comments and records.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
The Company has adopted a Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Haier Electronics Model
Code”) on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon enquiry by
the Company, all directors of the Company have confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard as set
out in the Haier Electronics Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2007.

In addition, the Board has adopted written guidelines
(the “Employees’ Guidelines for Securities Transactions”)
for securities transactions by employees (the “Relevant
Employees”) who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information of the Company on
no less exacting terms than the Haier Electronics Model
Code. Having made specific enquiry of all the Relevant
Employees, the Company confirmed that all the Relevant
Employees have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Employees’ Guidelines for Securities
Transactions throughout the year ended 31 December
2007.
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Board Committees

The Board has established an Audit Committee (the
“Audit Committee”) and a Remuneration Committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) (collectively the
“Committees”) to oversee specific aspects of the
Company’s affairs. The Committees report to the
Board regularly, and have been provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their respective duties. To reinforce
independence, the chairman of both the Committees is an
INED. Each of the Committees has adopted specific terms
of reference covering its duties, powers and functions
which will be reviewed by the Board from time to time.
The Company Secretary also acts as secretary of the
Committees. The Committees adopt as far as practicable,
the procedures and arrangement of the Board Meeting in
relation to the conduct of meetings, notice of meetings
and recording of minutes. Further particulars of each of
the Committees are set out below:

(1) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three
INEDs and is chaired by Mr. Yu Hon To, David. Mr.
Yu is a professional accountant and was formerly
a partner of an international accounting firm. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
ensure the objectivity and credibility of financial
reporting, to make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the Group’s external auditors and review of the
Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems. Each member of the Audit
Committee has unrestricted access to the Group’s
external auditors and the Management.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Audit
Committee held three meetings with an attendance
rate of 100% to review the management and
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and to discuss internal controls and financial
reporting matters including the review of 2006 annual
results and 2007 interim results of the Group.

EEg#W)
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)
Board Committees (Cont’d)

(1)

(2)

Audit Committee (Cont’d)
The following table shows the attendance of
members of the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2007:

INEDs: BYFHITES:
Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark* MBI

Mr. Fung Hoi Wing, Henry* it 1o

Mr. Wu Yinong RITERE

Mr. Yu Hon To, David** BEELLE
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng** Bzl tE L

*

resigned on 21 June 2007
appointed on 21 June 2007

**

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
five members including two executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Wu Ke Song and Mr. Cui Shao Hua and
all three INEDs. The Remuneration Committee is
chaired by Mr. Wu Yinong, an INED. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on policy and
structure of all remuneration of the Directors and
Management. Each of the Directors has not involved
in the determination of his/her own remuneration. The
Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year.
During the year, the Remuneration Committee has
held two meetings. At the meetings, members of the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
packages and overall benefits of the Directors and
Management by taking into account factors such
as remuneration packages and benefits offered by
comparable companies, the respective contribution
of each of the Directors and Management to the
Group and the business objectives of the Group.

EEgW)
EE2ZE2(#)

(1)

2

ERESE(E
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ER > HERERZEEERHEE

No. of Audit
Committee Meetings
attended/held
HiE/ BiT2
ERZEEEIRY

11
11
3/3
2/2
2/2
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Board Committees (Cont’d)

(2) Remuneration Committee (Cont’d)
The following table shows the attendance of
members of the Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2007:

EEg#W)

EE2ZE2(H#)

(2) ¥WHZESE(E
TRABE-ZZLF+ZA=+T—-HLF
ER @ HERFHESSERIHEER

No. of
Remuneration
Committee
Meetings
attended/held
HE/ BTz
Executive Directors: BITES: FHEEEERRE
Mr. Wu Ke Song HREMEE 0/2
Mr. Cui Shao Hua BLEEYE 1/2
INEDs: BYFHTES:
Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark* MEBBRE A 1/1
Mr. Fung Hoi Wing, Henry* BB R 1/1
Mr. Wu Yinong RITERE 2/2
Mr. Yu Hon To, David** BEELE 11
Dr. Liu Xiao Feng** BzlgiE L 11
* resigned on 21 June 2007 * R-BZLEANAZ+—HEBF
**  appointed on 21 June 2007 = RZEFLEXRAZT-HEZRE
Nomination of Directors BEEEg

The Board has not established a nomination committee.
However, accordingly to the Bye-laws, the Board has the
power from time to time to appoint any person as the
Director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. The Board will mainly take into consideration the
nominees’ qualification, skills, experience, particularly
their experience in the industry of the Group for the
nominees of the executive Director, and potential
contributions to the Group.

During the year, the Board held one meeting to consider
the suitability of the re-election of the Directors who were
subject to the retirement by rotation at the 2007 annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
Bye-laws.

ESEVERVREZES  AMRELTMAR
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Communication With Shareholders

It is the Company’s practice to include details of
the procedures for voting by poll and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll in the circulars to
shareholders in accordance with the Bye-laws and the
Listing Rules. The poll results of special general meetings
are also published in newspapers and on the websites of
the Stock Exchange. The Board regards general meetings
as one of the principal channels of communications with
our shareholders and the Directors provide detailed and
complete answers to questions raised by the shareholders
in the general meetings.

Insurance

The Group has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance to indemnify the Directors
and senior staff of the Group for their potential liabilities
incurred by them in discharging their duties. The Group
reviews the insurance coverage for the Directors and the
Group’s senior staff on an annual basis.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing financial statements of the Group in accordance
with relevant statutory requirements and generally
accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong and
ensuring that the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the Group’s financial position. In preparing
the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2007, the Directors have adopted suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; made
judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable;
and prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

The Board aims to present a comprehensive, balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s development
and prospects in all corporate communications, including
but not limited to annual and interim reports, any price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, any reports to regulators
as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant
to other statutory requirements.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Group is committed to implementing effective internal
controls and risk management procedures to identify and
manage the risks that may be faced by the Group, as
well as to safeguard the interests of the Group and our
shareholders as a whole.
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Internal Control and Risk Management (Cont’d)
The Board is responsible for maintaining adequate
internal controls and risk management procedures in the
Group, and for reviewing its effectiveness through the
Audit Committee on an on-going basis. The Board has
delegated to the Management the implementation of the
Group’s internal controls covering financial, operational
and compliance aspects, as well as risk management
procedures.

During the year, the Company has engaged external
independent professionals to assist in its review on the
operation of individual divisions of the Group and in
its assessment of the effectiveness of Group’s internal
control systems and risk management procedures in its
major business and operational processes. The Company
has established an internal control review plan to cover
its major internal control systems covering areas including
operational control, financial control and compliance
control. Recommendations for further improvements
have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Audit
Committee has, in turn, reported the same to the Board
together with its assessment and recommendations. Such
recommendations have been or are being followed up
by management. The Company is committed to maintain
an effective internal control system and will make sure
that adequate resources and management attention will
be devoted to strengthen its internal controls and risk
management procedures.

The Group does not currently has an internal audit
function. Recognizing the importance of internal controls
and risk management procedures, the Group has planned
to set up an internal audit department in the forthcoming
year with the assistance of external independent
professionals in establishing internal audit procedures
and in provision of appropriate training to the relevant
personnel.

Remuneration of External Auditors

The Group’s independent external auditors are Ernst &
Young, Certified Public Accountants. During the year,
the annual audit fees and non-audit fees payable/paid
by the Group to Ernst & Young were HK$8,000,000 and
HK$2,780,000, respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EXEERES

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries
comprise the manufacture and sale of washing machines
and water heaters. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2007
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
55 to 163.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividends for the year.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities
and minority interests of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set
out on page 164. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital, Share Options and Convertible
Notes

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital,
share options and convertible notes during the year are
set out in notes 31, 32 and 28 to the financial statements,
respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EXEERES

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed
Securities of the Company
Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the listed securities
of the Company during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 33(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2007, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$830,660,000. In addition,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$796,590,000, may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 61% of the total sales for the
year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 27%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 99% of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 75%.

During the year, Haier Group Corporation (“Haier Corp”)
and Qingdao Haier Investment and Development Co., Ltd.
(“Haier Investment”) (collectively the “Haier Group”), the
substantial shareholders of the Company, had beneficial
interests in two and five of the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers, respectively.
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EXEERES

Major Customers and Suppliers (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or any
of their associates or any shareholders of the Company
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:
Yang Mian Mian

Wu Ke Song

Liang Hai Shan

Cao Chun Hua

Cui Shao Hua

Sun Jing Yan

Chai Yong Sen

Song Chun Guang

(appointed on 8 March 2007)
(resigned on 15 February 2007)
(resigned on 15 February 2007)

Independent non-executive directors:
Wu Yinong

Liu Xiao Feng

Yu Hon To, David
Lam Kin Kau, Mark
Fung Hoi Wing, Henry

(appointed on 21 June 2007)
(appointed on 21 June 2007)
(resigned on 21 June 2007)
(resigned on 21 June 2007)

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, Cao
Chun Hua, Cui Shao Hua, Wu Yinong, Yu Hon To, David
and Liu Xiao Feng will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for any specific terms and are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the
bye-laws of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Wu Yinong, Dr. Liu Xiao Feng
and Mr. Yu Hon To, David, and, on the basis of such
confirmations, still considers them to be independent as
at the date of this report.
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Report of the Directors

EXEERES

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and
the senior management of the Group are set out on pages
10 to 13 of the annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

During the year, no director had a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined
by the Company’s board of directors with reference to
directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2007, no director had any interests and
short positions in the ordinary share(s) (“Share(s)”) or
the underlying Shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

EEREREEEREE

ARAREERFAEBESHREEEB 2 ERHANER
E10ZE13H o

BEERBEN
Fr BEESEAAATEARATER—F
AT CEER BRI M L ZRBELQ -

EEHMH
EENSAERRRRRAG LHE - HttBH S
DRANRESELSLEEIME  HE &
BRAEE > EETMEE o

EENazER
FAMEESERAQCAREZRLALEMEL
B MERKE QB AR LAY AREEER
MEREARZENT  HENBEEREES -

EERNRORERRO 2EER AR

R-ZZZLF+ZA=1T—0 HBEESRER
AREAREIE(EERRERBERHITES
REERG DEXVE) 2 EBR ([ IR0 1) N8RS
R BEEEACERAAARBERESZRYPE
ROIEI2IF[ERAFEE LM AREET S
BMERXZMAERLAAES LHHRNT EHRAD
10BN AR ESETESRENEEST
AIMAE AR BT BERAR -
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EEEREE

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares in or

Debentures of the Company

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements
regarding the share option scheme of the Company, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any director of the Company or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

EEREAQTAROIEER 2 EF

BREA MR MEE 32 FREl 2 AR R RE AR
FriREESN  RERNEABEREETARQITE
ERREZAZEBIRARF FLERTHITRE
AEBBAXRRTARDHEREMER 2 EF
MARAT  HERQABDIEWBELAREMER
MEQRABEI LEARY  HSARRESH
BEEAHMEABR ZZSER -



Report of the Directors

EXEERES

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2007, the following shareholders
interested in 5% or more of the issued Shares and/

or underlying Shares were recorded in the register of

substantial shareholders required to be kept by the

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in Shares:

Name of shareholder

Qingdao Haier Collective Asset
Management Association
(“Haier Collective Asset
Management”)

Haier Corp

Haier Investment

Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft

(“Deutsche Bank”)

Qingdao Haier Group Holdings
(BVI) Limited (“Haier BVI”)

Haier Electrical Appliances
Third Holdings (BVI) Limited
(“Haier Third BVI”)

BREREHE

EEBMEREEEEW
2(EHEREEEE])

BEEELE

BERE

BRERT(EER])

EEEWMEEZRBV)
BRAB(FEBVI])

BREEREZERBV)
ER2ABIEEE=
BVI])

FERRARORAEBERD 2 #R

REZZBZELF+ZA=1T—B UTREREABR
BRARBAREBEFEZRBERDIE 36 IFREER
FEZ2TERREMZEBTROR / RHEER
7 5% KL RS -

RGP ZiFE -
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares the Company’s
Notes interested share capital
ERNVNE|
HERER IR Z A
i3 ZBRBEE R4
1 1,459,042,593 78.47
2 1,459,042,593 78.47
3 1,459,042,593 78.47
4 1,264,598,149 68.01
5 939,792,593 50.55
100,000,000 5.38
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EXEERES

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Cont’d)

FERRARO KRR G 2 #m(F)

Short positions in the underlying Shares: HERD KR :
Number of Approximate
underlying percentage
Shares of total
Note interested shareholding
BEERZ R
Name of shareholder BRRERB wa HERDEA BHABEDE
Deutsche Bank =R 4 392,677,482 2112
Long positions in the underlying Shares: HERGDZFRE
Number of Approximate
underlying percentage
Shares of total
Note interested shareholding
BEERZ HREEEZ
Name of shareholder BRRERB ma HEROEA BHAES
Haier BVI SR BVI 5 94,444 444 5.08
Notes: =

1.

By virtue of the SFO, Haier Collective Asset Management
was deemed to be interested in (i) 336,600,000 Shares
held by its non-wholly-owned subsidiary, namely
Haier Investment; (ii) 82,650,000 Shares held by Haier
Investment’s indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary. In
addition, given Haier Investment was acting in concert with
Haier Corp and both Haier BVI and Haier Third BVI are non-
wholly-owned-subsidiaries of Haier Corp, Haier Collective
Asset Management was also deemed to be interested in
an aggregate of 939,792,593 Shares held by Haier BVI as
stated in note 5 below and 100,000,000 Shares held by
Haier Third BVI pursuant to the SFO.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian, Mr. Wu Ke Song and Mr. Liang Hai
Shan, the executive directors of the Company, are also
members of the board of management of Haier Collective
Asset Management.

1. REIHERPEKS SHERBEETERR
AEE() HIEZEMBATESHEREFREEZ
336,600,000 R R1D ; K (i) BHEREZBEHRE
BEHE LN TIFE 282,650,000 B AR © Lo - M
NEEREESHEELATN—BT8H > MEHE
BVIRBREE=BVIIASHEE AR ZHLE
WEBLAR  HUREZSFRBERD  SREEER
EEEETHEARN T XM i@ BVIE
B 241939,792,593 I 17 R IEFE =BVIF
A 2100,000,000 B i o A EEE RS ©

RRARPTESEERELL - RRNVNEERPE
WEETAEHEREEEEEEECHE -



Report of the Directors

EXEERES

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

and Underlying Shares (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

2.

As both Haier BVI and Haier Third BVI are the non-wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Haier Corp, Haier Corp was deemed
to be interested in an aggregate of 939,792,593 Shares held
by Haier BVI as stated in note 5 below and 100,000,000
Shares held by Haier Third BVI pursuant to the SFO.

Furthermore, as Haier Corp was acting in concert with
Haier Investment, Haier Corp was deemed to be interested
in 336,600,000 Shares held by Haier Investment and
82,650,000 Shares held by a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of Haier Investment.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian, Mr. Wu Ke Song and Mr. Liang Hai
Shan, the executive directors of the Company, are also the
members of the management committee of Haier Corp.

Haier Investment held 336,600,000 Shares and was
deemed to be interested in 82,650,000 Shares held by its
indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary. Moreover, Haier
Investment was deemed to be interested in an aggregate
of 939,792,593 Shares held by Haier BVI as stated in note
5 below and 100,000,000 Shares held by Haier Third BVI
pursuant to the SFO by reason of its acting in concert with
Haier Corp.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian and Mr. Cui Shao Hua, the executive
directors of the Company, are also directors of Haier
Investment.

Deutsche Bank had a long position in 1,264,598,149
Shares. In addition, it has a short position in 392,677,482
underlying Shares (the “DB Shares”) acquired pursuant
to an agreement dated 16 November 2005 entered into
between Deutsche Bank and CCT Telecom Holdings
Limited. In addition, pursuant to a subscription agreement
dated 16 November 2005 entered into between Deutsche
Bank and Haier BVI, Haier BVI agreed to issue and
Deutsche Bank agreed to subscribe for warrants in respect
of the 392,677,482 DB Shares which, upon exercise, will
entitle the holder to put such Shares to Haier BVI.

Haier BVI held 452,670,667 Shares. In addition, Haier BVI
was acting in concert with Deutsche Bank pursuant to an
undertaking letter dated 5 January 2006 executed by Haier
BVI and Deutsche Bank, pursuant to which Deutsche Bank
agreed that, unless otherwise agreed and subject to the
exceptions set out therein, Deutsche Bank will not sell or
dispose of any of the 392,677,482 DB Shares (as defined
in note 4 above). Accordingly, Haier BVI was deemed to be
interested in the DB Shares pursuant to the SFO.

FERRARO KRR G 2 #m(F)

Het - (4&)

HREABVIRBEHE=BVIASHEEE AT
FEEMBAR  HULRIEEZRAERAG > 8
AEEATAEEART XMFsFUEEBVIE
B2 E$939,792,593 B0 KB E =BVIEF
A 2100,000,000 B A& o R EE B RS ©

o BN EHEELREERERED —HT
B HWEWEELTAREANERRENFAZ
336,600,000 R 13 MBREIREZFEZEMB L
AI#H 2 82,650,000 R AR 3 R IR R o

RRARYPTEZERBLL - ERMEERRPE
WEET R EHEEARAERESEZHE -

ST 1R E 56 336,600,000 R AR5 » SN HERE
BMEEATAD—HTEH HBREZFFRHPEHK
Bl HERAREEEFRZEWNBATBEERZ
82,650,000 R MDA EEHER - WA T XHES
Frifi SR BVIEE 2 & 939,792,593 IR Ik 2 &
YT % = BVIEHE 2 100,000,000 RR 5 F#HE
o

RRABHTESERBLUIRELERETRE
BAREZES -

BRI 1,264,598, 149D 2 F & © bLoh»
RIEEREFESHAEEERATARZEZTHE
+—A+ R BELzHE  HTEEREZGE
FEB A 2 392,677,482 IR AR 12 ([ =R AR 17 1)
ZRAE o I RIBEREFEBVIR=-EZHR
F+—A+ X BT LzREWE  BEBVIEE
B ITMEREZRE S % 392,677,482 IREIR R
HZRBREE > RITER SEABERER
BVIFRHZERD ©

8 FBVIE 5452,670,667 R IR 10 o Lt 4h - 4R
EESWMBVIHERR _SEEAF-BREAEXL
ZERHE BHWBVIEERI—HITE - Lt
EREAE BRALHMUIRABEREEPFE
ETHAMART  ZERETSHESHETM
392,677,482 BB D (EE R LXK 5E4) ©
Hit - HEBVIREZRSFRBERABPREBENRE
IR HEEER -
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EXEERES

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

and Underlying Shares (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

5. Haier BVI was also interested in 94,444,444 underlying
Shares under the convertible notes as part of the
consideration pursuant to an agreement dated 5 March
2004 entered into between Haier Corp, Haier Investment
and the Company respectively.

Ms. Yang Mian Mian and Mr. Wu Ke Song, the executive
directors of the Company, are also directors of Haier BVI.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, no
other person had registered an interest or a short position
in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO.

Connected Transactions and Continuing

Connected Transactions

(@) On 15 June 2007, Qingdao Economy and Technology
Development Zone Haier Water Heater Co.,
Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a transfer agreement with
Qingdao Jiaonan Haier Microwave Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao Microwave”), an indirect non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of Haier Corp, pursuant
to which Qingdao Microwave agreed to transfer
certain building and plant (the “Assets”) to Qingdao
Economy and Technology Development Zone Haier
Water Heater Co., Ltd. for a total consideration
of approximately RMB26,554,000 (approximately
HK$27,085,000). The consideration of this
transaction was determined with reference to the
valuation of the Assets conducted by an independent
qualified valuer in Mainland China.

The transfer agreement subsequently lapsed on 30
September 2007 (being the long-stop date of the
transfer agreement) because Qingdao Economy and
Technology Development Zone Haier Water Heater
Co., Ltd. failed to receive the revised state-owned
land use right certificate in connection with the
building to be transferred.

FERRARO KRR G 2 #m(F)

Het - (4&)

5.

BEBVITRNEEEEAR - BAREREAATF
E-ZZNME=AR AR ziGRTERD K E
Z AR R AT R 2 94,444,444 IRAABAIR D
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AARPITESBERLIRRRNRAEELREE
FBVIZES -
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EXEERES

Connected Transactions and Continuing

Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

(b) On 4 September 2007, Haier Washing Machines
Holdings (BVI) Limited (“Haier WM BVI”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as purchaser entered into equity transfer
agreements with Indesit Company S.p.A. and
Indesit Company Luxembourg S.A. (“Indesit
Group”) as vendors pursuant to which Haier WM
BVI agreed to acquire and Indesit Group agreed
to sell the 30% shareholding of Haier Indesit
(Qingdao) Washing Machine Co., Ltd. and Haier
Indesit (Qingdao) Electrical Appliance Co., Ltd.
for an aggregate consideration of €14,310,000
(approximately HK$162,977,000). Haier Indesit
(Qingdao) Washing Machine Co., Ltd. and Haier
Indesit (Qingdao) Electrical Appliance Co., Ltd. are
indirect 70%-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
The consideration of this transaction was determined
after arm’s length negotiations between Haier WM
BVI and Indesit Group with reference to similar
transactions in relevant industries.

The above transaction was completed on 24
December 2007.

HEXZRBERERS (&)

(b)
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EXEERES

Connected Transactions and Continuing

Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

(c) During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries,
Qingdao Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao
Jiaonan Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Hefei
Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde
Haier Electric Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier
Intelligent Electronic Co., Ltd., Chongqing Haier
Washing Machine Co., Ltd. and Qingdao Haier
Electronics Sales Co., Ltd. had the following

continuing connected transactions with Haier Corp,

Haier Investment, their subsidiaries and associates

(collectively referred to as “Haier Affiliates”):

BE

(©)

RERFERERZ (#F)

FR - ARAMBELRESEBEAREER
NE) - EEREERATRKARLR - S
BRAREERAT - BIUTIERESHEESR
BRLF - HUTIREESHEEEELSARD
A EESMATRKARAAREESHEE
RHEARLAAEEHEELT  BER
& HNBLRAREE QAR (RBH SR
BAL DBETUTHERERS :

Group
2007 2006
—EBBLF —EERE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bz FET FET
Export sales of washing machines O SH & SRR (i) 331,603 346,991
Domestic sales of washing Bl RS E LR HER
machines and water heaters ok 88 (ii) 480,068 21,901
Purchases of raw materials i ER (iii) 4,009,916 3,105,709
Printing and packaging fee
expenses ERIREEESH (iv) 11,126 4,376
Mould charges BABLH (v) 72,652 45,640
Utility service fee expenses NARKEX S (vi) 16,518 12,441
Logistics charges YImEX (vii) 189,795 125,621
Promotion fee expenses SEEELH (viii) 58,980 47,984
Other service fee expenses Hifr &L H (ix) 50,046 31,373
Interest expenses FIE X H (x) 3,336 269
Interest income FEWA (x) 4,613 1,808
Trademark licence fee expenses BERBESH (xi) 40,195 32,315
Consignment sale commission
income AR EASKRA (xii) 3,684 -
Sales of gift products HEER (xiii) 5,644 -




Report of the Directors

EXEERES

Connected Transactions and Continuing

Connected Transactions (Cont’d)
(c) (Contd)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The export sales of washing machines were made
to Haier Electrical Appliances Co., Ltd. (“Haier
Electrical”), a subsidiary of Haier Investment, at
selling prices representing differences between
the selling prices of washing machines mutually
agreed and the selling expenses of Haier Electrical
not exceeding 2.5% of the selling prices of washing
machines.

The domestic sales of washing machines and water
heaters were determined at rates mutually agreed
between the relevant parties.

The purchases of materials were charged based
on the lower of the average market price or the
consolidated and integrated tender and bidding
price plus a commission of no more than 2.6% of the
aforementioned purchase price.

The printing and packaging fee expenses were
charged on an actual cost basis plus a processing
fee of not higher than those charged by independent
third parties.

The moulds were charged with reference to the
average market tender and bidding price plus actual
administrative costs.

The utility service fee expenses were charged
based on the state-prescribed prices plus actual
administrative costs.

The logistics charges were charged based on an
actual cost basis and on terms more favourable than
those offered by independent third parties.

The promotion fee expenses were charged based on
1.2% of the domestic sales of washing machines.

The other service fee expenses were determined with
reference to actual costs incurred.

HEXZRBERERS (&)

(©)

(&)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

BAEREREZMBARSHEEEREE
ARAB(MNEHEREX D HAHERK
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SMEBTHEAGE -

DNARBEXHDREEREEERS N
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EXEERES

Connected Transactions and Continuing

Connected Transactions (Cont’d)
(Cont'd)

(c)

Notes: (Cont’d)

()

(xi)

(xii)

(xii)

The interest expenses and income were determined
with reference to the standard rates published by the
People’s Bank of China.

The trademark licence fee expenses were charged
at a rate of 0.8% of certain sales made by Qingdao
Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde
Haier Electric Co., Ltd., Hefei Haier Washing Machine
Co., Ltd., Qingdao Jiaonan Haier Washing Machine
Co., Ltd. and Chonggqging Haier Washing Machine Co.,
Ltd.

The consignment sale commission income was
determined at 2% of the turnover of the sales of
the outstanding inventories of washing machines
and water heaters owned by subsidiaries of Haier
Investment at 31 December 2006.

The sales of gift products were made at selling prices
no less than that sold by the Group to independent
third parties.

HEXZRBERERS (&)

(©)

(&)

BeE - ()

(x)

(xii)

(xiii)

MEXHR WA TIRE T EARRTEM
ZIBEERETE o
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EXEERES

Connected Transactions and Continuing

Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

(c) (Contd)
During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries, Haier
Indesit (Qingdao) Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Haier
Indesit (Qingdao) Electrical Appliance Co., Ltd.,
Qingdao Economy and Technology Development
Zone Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd., Wuhan Haier
Water Heater Co., Ltd. and Chongqing Haier Water
Heater Co., Ltd. had the following continuing
connected transactions with Haier Affiliates:
Group
Export sales of washing machines o O SHE TR
Export sales of water heaters O S E 2Ok SR
Purchases of raw materials REE R
Printing and packaging fee expenses Rk BEHEELH
Mould charges HEESH
Utility service fee expenses NARBESH
Logistics charges IREx
Promotion fee expenses SEESH
Other service fee expenses Hifr &L H
Interest expenses MEXZH
Interest income FEWA

Notes:

(xiv) The export sales of washing machines and water
heaters were made to Haier Electrical at selling prices
representing differences between the selling prices
of washing machines and water heaters mutually
agreed and the selling expenses of Haier Electrical
not exceeding 2.5% of the selling prices of washing

machines.

(xv) The purchases of raw materials were charged based
on the lower of the average market price or the
consolidated and integrated tender and bidding
price plus a commission of no more than 2.6% of the

aforementioned purchase price.

BAE

(©)

EXGREBEER S ()

(&)
FRNARAZHBRRAEHEREE(E
B)ARKERNT BHERE(EB)E
BRAERAT - BRAERINFREERAK

%%ﬁlzﬁi\\ﬁ_] M ﬁl‘%/ﬁi?’?ﬂannﬁBEi\\ EJ&E
ESRAKSBARA AESHEEA £ it

TTHSERERS

BiEE -

(xiv)

2007

—EFtH

Notes HK$°000
Mzt FET
(xiv) 509,219
(xiv) 6,047
(xv) 2,141,559
(xvi) 13,641
(xvii) 27,872
(xviii) 35,196
(xix) 91,448
(xx) 33,452
(xxi) 39,645
(xxii) 7,707
(xxii) 482

HEXATKRB KRBT ERNEREEZZE
EBEDNRBEEERESHE ZARKEEE
SHEREEHERI(TBBRARIKE
B225%) 2 Z58MET °

RBERDRETSVPHEINR —EEH
SR CERSMTBBARBEE26%
ZREFHEUBREERE) -
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EXEERES

Connected Transactions and Continuing

Connected Transactions (Cont’d)
(c) (Contd)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(xvi) The printing and packaging fee expenses were
charged on actual cost basis plus a processing fee of
not higher than those charged by independent third
parties.

(xvii) The moulds were charged with reference to the
average market tender and bidding price plus actual
administrative costs.

(xviii) The utility service fee expenses were charged with
reference to the state-prescribed prices plus actual
administrative costs.

(xix) The logistics charges were determined on terms no
less favourable than those offered by independent
third parties.

(xx) The promotion fee expenses were charged at 1.2%
of the domestic sales of washing machines and water
heaters.

(xxi) The other service fee expenses were determined with
reference to actual costs incurred.

(xxii) The interest expenses and income were determined
with reference to the standard rates published by the
People’s Bank of China.

Except for the domestic sales of washing machines
and water heaters, trademark licence fee expenses,
consignment sale commission income and sales of
gift products, the above transactions were defined as
the Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
or the Continuing Connected Transactions in the
circulars to the shareholders of the Company dated 4
October 2005 and 25 September 2006, respectively,
and were approved by the shareholders at special
general meetings of the Company held on 24 October
2005 and 23 October 20086, respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EXEERES

Connected Transactions and Continuing

Connected Transactions (Cont’d)
(c) (Contd)

The Stock Exchange has granted conditional
waivers to the Company in respect of the Non-
exempt Continuing Connected Transactions and
the Continuing Connected Transactions from
strict compliance with the connected transactions
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules for
the three financial years ended 31 December 2007
and for the three years ending 31 December 2008,
respectively.

The independent non-executive directors of the
Company have reviewed the Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions and the Continuing
Connected Transactions set out above and have
confirmed that they were entered into:

(i) in the usual and ordinary course of business of
the Group;

(ii) either on normal commercial terms or, if there
are not sufficient comparable transactions to
judge whether they are on normal commercial
terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

(d) As at the balance sheet date, Haier Corp provided
corporate guarantees up to RMB201,000,000 (2006:
RMB156,800,000) (equivalent to HK$214,973,000
(2006: HK$153,726,000)) to Haier Group Finance Co.,
Ltd. (“Haier Finance”), a subsidiary of Haier Corp
and a financial institution approved by the People’s
Bank of China, for loan facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

EXEERES

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was
held by the public as at the date of this report.

Post Balance Sheet Events
Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the
Group are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

Auditors
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditors of the Company will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On Behalf of the Board

Yang Mian Mian
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 April 2008
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYZBERESE

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
%z Kk

To the shareholders of Haier Electronics
Group Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Haier
Electronics Group Co., Ltd. set out on pages 55 to 163,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BYZBERESE

Auditors’ responsibility (Cont’d)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2007 and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong
24 April 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

makask
Year ended 31 December 2007
BE-FTLF+-A=+—AILFE

2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FET FET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEREER
REVENUE U &= 5 8,549,239 6,901,705
Cost of sales SHERA (6,058,011) (5,062,200)
Gross profit ER 2,491,228 1,839,505
Other income and gains H b Ug A R U & 5 34,521 42,960
Selling and distribution costs HER D SHR A (1,646,661) (1,243,740)
Administrative expenses THER (527,071) (401,679)
Other expenses HtER (5,993) (2,441)
Finance costs [ER= 7 (24,068) (11,109)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R A1 2 A 6 321,956 223,496
Tax 1| 10 (96,259) (39,710)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM SEREEB 2 FANE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS F 225,697 183,786
DISCONTINUED OPERATION EARIEREEK
Profit for the year from a ERIIREXERZFR
discontinued operation T A 12 — 103,420
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR@A 225,697 287,206
Attributable to: FEAL -
Equity holders of the parent BRARREFEA 11 172,131 262,349
Minority interests DEBRRER 53,566 24,857
225,697 287,206
DIVIDENDS R E 13 - 60,875
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRAREBREFEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY FE{RERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT 14
Basic 2R
— For profit for the year — FREA 9.29 HK centsi&{l 14.36 HK centsi&ll
— For profit for the year from  — FEKLEELF
continuing operations A g Al 9.29 HK centsi#fll  8.70 HK centsiE{ll
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — FRIER 9.22 HK centsi#{ 13.93 HK centsi&{l
— For profit for the year from  — FEKEELF
continuing operations Wiﬁﬂ 9.22 HK centsiﬁﬂh 8.59 HK cents;‘%ﬂ
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

mREEEREAR

31 December 2007
—EF+tFE+=A=1—H

2007 2006
—EELF —EIRE
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
BtaE FET FiET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ BERRE 16 758,236 700,030
Prepaid land premiums FEAS LR 17 77,745 75,661
Intangible assets mREE 18 1,484 1,734
Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 30 49,506 34,681
Long term prepayments REAFEFRFIE 20 - 5,169
Total non-current assets ERBEEAE 886,971 817,275
CURRENT ASSETS RENERE
Inventories FE 21 658,534 208,070
Trade and bills receivables EWE SRR ZE 22 1,347,026 1,619,408
Prepayments, deposits and other FaNRE e EMmEW
receivables BRX 23 178,255 101,464
Tax recoverable GBSk R - 261
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEER 24 595,426 626,802
Total current assets B EEAE 2,779,241 2,556,005
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and bills payables EBHESERRERE 25 1,032,041 1,210,013
Tax payable FE{SHIE 104,269 26,039
Other payables and accruals HittEAERRREFTEE 26 1,013,902 861,566
Provisions s 29 63,898 61,172
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE 27 62,032 58,000
Convertible notes Al AR EiE 28 169,344 —
Total current liabilities RBEEHEEE 2,445,486 2,216,790
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 333,755 339,215
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRBERE
LIABILITIES 1,220,726 1,156,490
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE 27 152,941 78,800
Convertible notes R EE 28 - 161,665
Provisions B 29 125,661 109,993
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE 30 - 7,465
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEEZE 278,602 357,923
Net assets EEFE 942,124 798,567




Consolidated Balance Sheet

mREEEREAR

31 December 2007
—EF+tFE+=A=1—H

2007 2006
s —EERF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Kzt FETT FET
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity holders &2 B IRIEFE ABIGER
of the parent
Issued equity TR 31 1,248,210 1,212,960
Equity component of convertible AR RE 2 R
notes 22,094 22,094
Reserves ] 33(a) (422,904) (590,935)
847,400 644,119
Minority interests DERRER 94,724 154,448
Total equity EREE 942,124 798,567
Yang Mian Mian Cui Shao Hua
Chairman Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
RERRBHR

Year ended 31 December 2007
BE-SELF+-A=1—ALFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

Retained
profits/
(acc-  Exchange
Issued Reserve  umulated  fluctuation Minority Total
equity funds losses) reserve Total interests equity
@A/
BRfRR BEES  (RER) NERDER 4% JHRFER  ERUE
HK$:000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$'000
7A1 741 74 T4 741 741 741
(note) (note) (note)
() () ()
At1 January 2006 RCZERE
-A-H 1,094,159 - 96,908 (394,657) 32,322 946,915 162,507 1,109,422
Exchange realignment ~ E2 - - 3471 3471 6,273 40,984
Total income and ERERNER
expensefortheyear  BEBZUAR
recognised directlyin B
equity - - - 34,711 34,711 6,213 40984
Poftfortheyerr  EREA 22349 - M9 U 26
Total income and ERHAR
expense for the year ERLE = - 262,349 34,711 297,060 31,130 328,190
Dividends ke - - (B0 I Ik
Contribution from BRARLE
holding companies - - (1,586) - 2,741 (18,747) 5,000
Deemed distrioutionto ~ BEMEF
holding companies 2R - - - - (660,000) - (660,000)
Disposal of subsidiaries ~ HENEA - (3,010) 3010 (18342 (13342 - (13,342)
Conversion of AETERZE
convertible notes 3 65,509 - - - - 57322 - 57322
Equity-settled share ~~ WARfEEEZ
option amangements  EREZH - - - - 409 - 409
Exercise of share fiEhRE
options 3 53,292 - - - 52,883 - 52,883
Transfer toreserve funds ERZFEES - 68,407 (68.407) - - - -
At31 December 2006 R=EEiE
and 1 January 2007 tZRA=F-§
R=E%LE
-B-H 1,212,960 - 162,305 260,166) 53,691 644,119 154,448 798,567
Exchange realignment B8R - - = 64,388 64,388 12,079 76,467
Total income and ERERNER
expensefortheyear  BEBZUAR
recognised directlyin B
equity - - - 64,388 64,388 12,079 76,467
Proft for the year ERE - - 172,131 - i 53566 225,697
Total income and ERUAR
expense for the year EREE - - 172,131 64,388 236,519 65,645 302,164
Acquisition of minority WS HRFER
iterests - - [eBdey) - B4 (4 (182970)
Dividends DS = - - - - (30,880) (30,880)
Capital reduction ] - - - - - - -
Efimination of REZHEE
accumulated losses - - - 1196370 - - - -
Exercise of share fiEnE
options 3 35,250 - - - 35,250 - 35,250
Transfer to reserve funds  ERZFEES - 58,730 (58,730) - - - -
At31 December 2007 R-EBLE
+=A=t-A 1,248,210 221,03 981,17 118,079 847,400 94724 942,124

Note: These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated
reserves in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

REEETRER

Year ended 31 December 2007
BE-SELF+-A=1—ALFE

2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
BtaE FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax: BRELRREA
From continuing operations REFEREEK 321,956 223,496
From a discontinued operation RECHRIELEER 12 — (53,029)
Adjustments for: ELAT % .
Finance costs =Y %N 7 24,068 14,626
Interest income FE YA 5 (10,121) (16,874)
Depreciation e 6 80,061 101,360
Recognition of prepaid land RN L HFX
premiums 6 2,324 1,427
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 6 355 639
Provision for obsolete and slow- BERFHTERE
moving inventories 6 5,226 30,238
Loss on disposal/write-off of HE HMEME BER
items of property, plant and HEEE BIBFE
equipment, net 6 5,993 2,441
Equity-settled share option RS E 2 BIR R
expense 6 - 409
Expenses directly attributable to HECKRIEREEKEE
the disposal of the discontinued EiEER
operation 34 - (2,219)
429,862 302,514
Decrease in long term prepayments & EiFE{S FRIE R 4> 5,169 4,772
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BEERD, (M) (455,690) 77,393
Decrease/(increase) in trade and EWE ZERAREERLD,
bills receivables (3Zn) 272,382 (973,046)
Increase in prepayments, deposits ~ FANFIE » RE R HAEL
and other receivables FRIEE N (75,951) (34,778)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills BN EZE SRR R ZEE N,
payables O 2) (177,972) 727,259
Increase in other payables and HihEARIER EFT A EIE M
accruals 145,588 166,007
Increase in provisions BB 18,394 62,706
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXESETEFHE
changes, net 11,288 (2,817)
Cash generated from operations REEBABRS 173,070 330,010
Interest received 2HFE 10,121 5,686
Mainland China corporate income B 15 R B R PE 1 3 A5 B
tax paid (40,058) (19,096)
Net cash inflow from operating REXKZRETAFRE
activities 143,133 316,600
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

FEHERER
Year ended 31 December 2007
BE—EE+tF-HA=1+—HILFE

2007 2006
—EELF —EBERE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
HzE FHT T
Net cash inflow from operating REXBCEHSRNFE
activities 143,133 316,600
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEYE BMERSZEBEER
plant and equipment and interest BRI B
capitalised 16 (95,447) (128,535)
Additions to prepayments for land FIBIE (T £ thFR
premiums 17 - (40,218)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYXE « MEKZEEE
property, plant and equipment Fri8Fhia 207 2,970
Disposal of investments HERE - 4,807
Contribution from holding companies =B AT~ HE - 5,000
Acquisition of minority interests WGBS D R R 2 (162,977) —
Disposal of subsidiaries HE ML F] 34 - (38,534)
Decrease in pledged deposits 2IRAF D - 70
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits FREREEE B £
with original maturity of more than =EB &R 2 EH
three months when acquired FEoRA () 228,000 (228,000)
Net cash outflow from investing BRETH RS R S5
activities (30,217) (422,440)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares upon X i&REETHEMELT
exercise of share options BB 1D P8 3k1E 31 35,250 52,883
Interest paid EFE (9,641) (7,167)
Dividends paid to minority interests Bt > EHIREEZSRE (30,880) (32,447)
Dividends paid 2NRE - (80,997)
New borrowings i s 125,333 204,107
Repayment of borrowings BEEE (59,487) (200,000)
Net repayment of trust receipts BEESTWIEEEE - (42,472)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from BMETFFZ2RERA (RE)
financing activities R EE 60,575 (106,093)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN BERASLEEERA 2 mM
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R2)F8 173,491 (211,933)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzHRERBEE£EEIER
beginning of year 398,802 592,162
Effect of foreign exchange rate PE R ) S R AR
changes, net 23,133 18,573
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT F#&zBHE&RBREE£SEHER
END OF YEAR 595,426 398,802
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ®RE&RREZFEEHZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS LA DT
Cash and bank balances RERRITER 470,754 350,685
Time deposits with original maturity BRERERESERAR=EAR
of less than three months when ZHA > EHIE TR
acquired 124,672 48,117
595,426 398,802




Balance Sheet

EEE/X

31 December 2007
—EF+tFE+=A=1—H

2007 2006
—EZtHF —EERF
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Kiat FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries M A m RS 19 2,143,636 1,982,920
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other AR  RERHEAM
receivables FEUR BRFX 23 999 346
Cash and cash equivalents HERREeEEER 24 143,403 66,021
Total current assets REEEHAE 144,402 66,367
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBERE
Other payables and accruals HtEAERRRETERE 26 202,359 186,345
Convertible notes AR EE 28 169,344 =
Total current liabilities RBEEERAE 371,703 186,345
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFE (227,301) (119,978)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HWEERREEE
LIABILITIES 1,916,335 1,862,942
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Due to subsidiaries FEHEB R T RE 19 81,060 84,789
Convertible notes AR EiE 28 - 161,665
81,060 246,454
Net assets EEFE 1,835,275 1,616,488
EQUITY D
Issued capital BERTRA 31 185,932 1,836,573
Equity component of convertible AR RS EREED
notes 22,093 22,093
Reserves {#1E 33(b) 1,627,250 (242,178)
Total equity fEREE 1,835,275 1,616,488
Yang Mian Mian Cui Shao Hua
Chairman Director
E i
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Notes to Financial Statements
B ER R MIEE

31 December 2007
—EFtFL=H=+-A

21

Corporate Information

Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the
following principal activities:

o manufacture and sale of washing machines
o manufacture and sale of water heaters

In the opinion of the directors, Haier Group
Corporation (“Haier Corp”) and Qingdao Haier
Investment and Development Co., Ltd. (“Haier
Investment”) (collectively referred to as “Haier
Group”) are controlling shareholders of the Company.
Haier Corp and Haier Investment are registered in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B ER R MIEE

31 December 2007
—EFtFL=H=+-A

2.1 wWBEERE)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2007. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results
and net assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.
An acquisition of minority interests is accounted
for using the entity concept method whereby the
difference between the consideration and the book
value of the share of the net assets acquired is
recognised as an equity transaction.

Business combinations involving entities under
common controls and basis of presentation

On 31 December 2006, the Company acquired
from its controlling shareholders, Haier Group,
their entire 100% interest in Haier Electrical
Appliances Fourth Holdings (BVI) Limited (“Haier
SPV”) at a consideration of HK$900 million (the
“Asset Transfer”). The subsidiaries of Haier SPV are
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
washing machines and water heaters. Haier SPV and
its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the
“Haier SPV Group”.

As the Company and Haier SPV Group were under
the common control of Haier Group before and
after the Asset Transfer, the Asset Transfer was
accounted for in the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2006 as a
business combination under common control using
merger accounting under the Accounting Guideline 5
Merger accounting for common control combinations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accounts. As a result, the operating results of Haier
SPV Group for the year ended 31 December 2006
have been included in the income statement of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2006.
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2.2 Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has adopted the following new and

revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current

year’s financial statements. Except for in certain

cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting

policies and additional disclosures, the adoption of

these new and revised standards and interpretations

has had no material effect on these financial

statements.
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures
HKAS 1 Capital Disclosures
Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10

Scope of HKFRS 2

Reassessment of
Embedded Derivatives

Interim Financial
Reporting and
Impairment

The principal effects of adopting these new and

revised HKFRSs are as follows:

(a)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
This standard requires disclosures that enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate
the significance of the Group’s financial
instruments and the nature and extent of risks
arising form those financial instruments. The
new disclosures are included throughout the
financial statements. While there has been
no effect on the financial position or results
of operations of the Group, comparative
information has been included/revised where
appropriate.
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2.2 Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Cont’d)

(b) Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Capital Disclosures
This amendment requires the Group to make
disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital.
These new disclosures are shown in note 38 to
the financial statements.

(c) HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be
applied to any arrangement in which the Group
cannot identify specifically some or all of the
goods or services received, for which equity
instruments are granted or liabilities (based
on a value of the Group’s equity instruments)
are incurred by the Group for a consideration,
and which appears to be less than the fair
value of the equity instruments granted or
liabilities incurred. As the Company has only
issued equity instruments to its employees in
accordance with the Company’s share option
scheme, the interpretation has had no effect on
these financial statements.

(d) HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives
This interpretation requires that the date to
assess whether an embedded derivative is
required to be separated from the host contract
and accounted for as a derivative is the date
that the Group first becomes a party to the
contract, with reassessment only if there
is change to the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows. As the Group has no
embedded derivative requiring separation from
the host contract, the interpretation has had no
effect on these financial statements.
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2.2 Impact of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Cont’d)

(e)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting
and Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation
as of 1 January 2007, which requires that an
impairment loss recognised in a previous interim
period in respect of goodwill or an investment
in either an equity instrument classified as
available-for-sale or a financial asset carried at
cost is not subsequently reversed. As the Group
had no impairment losses previously reversed
in respect of such assets, the interpretation
has had no impact on the financial position or
results of operations of the Group.

2.3 Impact of Issued But Not Yet Effective

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 2 Amendment

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 Amendment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Share-based Payment
Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations '

Business Combinations °
Operating Segments '

Presentation of Financial
Statements '

Borrowing Costs '

Consolidated and
Separate Financial
Statements °

HKFRS 2 - Group
and Treasury Share
Transactions 2

Service Concession
Arrangements *

Customer Loyalty
Programmes °

HKAS 19 - The Limit
on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction *
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2.3 Impact of Issued But Not Yet Effective
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(Cont’d)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
March 2007

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009

HKFRS 2 has been amended to restrict the definition
of “vesting condition” to a condition that includes an
explicit or implicit requirement to provide services.
Any other conditions are non-vesting conditions,
which have to be taken into account to determine the
fair value of the equity instruments granted. In the
case that the award does not vest as the result of a
failure to meet a non-vesting condition that is within
the control of either the entity or the counterparty,
this must be accounted for as a cancellation. The
Group has not entered into share-based payment
schemes with non-vesting conditions attached and,
therefore, does not expect significant implications on
its accounting for share-based payments.

HKFRS 3 has been revised to introduce a number of
changes in the accounting for business combinations
that will impact the amount of goodwill recognised,
the reported results in the period that an acquisition
occurs, and future reported results.

HKAS 27 has been revised to require a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary is accounted for
as an equity transaction. Therefore, such a change
will have no impact on goodwill, nor will it give
rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended
standard changes the accounting for losses incurred
by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a
subsidiary.
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2.3 Impact of Issued But Not Yet Effective
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Cont’d)

The changes introduced by HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27
must be applied prospectively and will affect future
acquisitions and transactions with minority interests.

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment
Reporting, specifies how an entity should report
information about its operating segments, based on
information about the components of the entity that
is available to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of allocating resources to the segments
and assessing their performance. The standard also
requires the disclosures of information about the
products and services provided by the segments,
the geographical areas in which the Group operates,
and revenue from the Group’s major customers. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 8 from 1 January
2009.

HKAS 1 has been revised to introduce changes in the
presentation and disclosure of financial statements
and does not change the recognition, measurement
or disclosure of specific transactions and other
events required by other HKFRSs.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation
of borrowing costs when such costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset. As the Group’s
current policy for borrowing costs aligns with the
requirements of the revised standard, the revised
standard is unlikely to have any financial impact on
the Group.
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2.3 Impact of Issued But Not Yet Effective

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Cont’d)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 requires arrangements whereby
an employee is granted rights to the Group’s equity
instruments, to be accounted for as an equity-settled
scheme, even if the Group acquires the instruments
from another party, or the shareholders provide the
equity instruments needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 also
addresses the accounting for share-based payment
transactions involving two or more entities within
the Group. As the Group currently has no such
transactions, the interpretation is unlikely to have any
financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires an operator under public-
to-private service concession arrangements to
recognise the consideration received or receivable in
exchange for the construction services as a financial
asset and/or an intangible asset, based on the terms
of the contractual arrangements. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12
also addresses how an operator shall apply existing
HKFRSs to account for the obligations and the rights
arising from service concession arrangements by
which a government or a public sector entity grants
a contract for the construction of infrastructure used
to provide public services and/or for the supply of
public services. As the Group currently has no such
arrangements, the interpretation is unlikely to have
any financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires that loyalty award credits
granted to customers as part of a sales transaction
are accounted for as a separate component of the
sales transaction. The consideration received in the
sales transaction is allocated between the loyalty
award credits and the other components of the sale.
The amount allocated to the loyalty award credits
is determined by reference to their fair value and is
deferred until the awards are redeemed or the liability
is otherwise extinguished.
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2.3

2.4

Impact of Issued But Not Yet Effective
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(Cont’d)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit
under HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, on the amount
of a refund or a reduction in future contributions
in relation to a defined benefit scheme that can
be recognised as an asset, in particular, when a
minimum funding requirement exists.

As the Group currently has no customer loyalty award
credits and defined benefit scheme, HK(IFRIC)-Int
13 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 are not applicable to the
Group and therefore are unlikely to have any financial
impact on the Group.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and
operating policies the Company controls, directly or
indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s income statement to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Joint ventures
A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and
the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint
venture parties, the duration of the joint venture entity
and the basis on which the assets are to be realised
upon its dissolution. The profits and losses from the
joint venture’s operations and any distributions of
surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in
proportion to their respective capital contributions,
or in accordance with the terms of the joint venture
agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or
indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the
joint venture’s registered capital and is in a
position to exercise significant influence over
the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in
accordance with HKAS 39, if the Group holds,
directly or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint
venture’s registered capital and has neither
joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise
significant influence over, the joint venture.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as
to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist
or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment
loss is credited to the income statement in the period
in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

(c)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the Group;
(i) has an interest in the Group that gives it
significant influence over the Group; or (iii) has
joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it
is part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment, and where the cost of the item can be
measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as
an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2% to 10%
Plant and machinery 5% to 19%
Tools, furniture and fixtures 10% to 33%
Motor vehicles 9% to 20%
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Cont’d)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction and equipment pending installation. It
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of the property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Cont’d)
Patents and licences
Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
no more than 10 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income
statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised using the
straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the
underlying products.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Investments and other financial assets
Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-
for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes
a party to it and assesses whether an embedded
derivative is required to be separated from the host
contract when the analysis shows that the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative
are not closely related to those of the host contract.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the
cash flows that would otherwise be required under
the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its
financial assets after initial recognition and,
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Gains or losses on investments held for trading
are recognised in the income statement. The net
fair value gain or loss recognised in the income
statement does not include any dividends on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Such assets
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont’d)
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
securities that are designated as available for sale or
are not classified in any of the other two categories.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value, with gains or
losses recognised as a separate component of equity
until the investment is derecognised or until the
investment is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported
in equity is included in the income statement. Interest
and dividends earned are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and
are recognised in the income statement as “Other
income” in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below. Losses arising from the
impairment of such investments are recognised in the
income statement as “Impairment loss on available-
for-sale financial assets” and are transferred from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the
variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (b)
the probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value, such securities are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively
traded in organised financial markets is determined
by reference to quoted market bid prices at the
close of business at the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair
value is determined using valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same;
a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing
models.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either
directly or through the use of an allowance account.
The amount of the impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement, to the extent that the carrying value of
the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)
In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision
for impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
significant changes in the technological, market
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor) that the Group will not be
able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount
of the receivables is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised
when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net
of any principal payment and amortisation) and
its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the income statement, is
transferred from equity to the income statement.
A provision for impairment is made for available-
for-sale equity investments when there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below its cost or where other objective evidence
of impairment exists. The determination of what is
“significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement. In
addition, the Group evaluates other factors, such as
the share price volatility. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Cont’d)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired;

° the Group retains the rights to receive cash
flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset and either (a)
has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a
written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred
asset, the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of
a written put option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair
value, where the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of
the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including
interest-bearing loans and borrowings)
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
initially stated at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. The related
interest expense is recognised within “finance costs”
in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the amortisation process.

Convertible notes

The component of convertible notes that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability
in the balance sheet, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible notes, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using a market
rate for an equivalent non-convertible note; and
this amount is carried as a long term liability on
the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the
proceeds is allocated to the conversion option that
is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity,
net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the
conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent
years. Transaction costs are apportioned between
the liability and equity components of the convertible
notes based on the allocation of proceeds to the
liability and equity components when the instruments
are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

2.4 TESHHERBEHE)

BBERTIRZMBERE(BESFEERK
kfEE)

MR ERERENE SRR AR IR
Kt BERREE  BRAELFEREERE
ERZEATER - HRUBEREFEEAEH
AR MR 2FERK . AR
HABIER - HER S X HR W ERIBE R
IR ©

FEBRENK LRI EERUAREBEER
BERIERER o

CE:Y e
TEREEPERAEERRZEBD - RO
REBAREEERGEREIR/EE - BT
THRRERR  RARSFTRRERZT
BEETRENS 2D FE  RBHERAEE
HZBEIARIEE  EERRIEDE
AEAL - IEFUEBRI BECER 2B
BREARE - R Z RA R ARR B o
REREFE  BRREEZREETSERT
B - RERARBAABFER T A ERER
RESBEEERNRI 2BzoE  2EAA
BRREEEII RERID

RIS A
LEE RARGRSHRIEE  HKa
AR TR -

foe) Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2007
@ BHBREEERAT —EETLFFR



' Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2007
el TEEREEERAT 2R LEER

Notes to Financial Statements
o EY R

31 December 2007
—EFtFL=H=+-A

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Derecognition of financial liabilities (Cont’d)
When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Provisions (Cont’d)
When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the balance sheet date of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the income statement.

Provisions for installation services and product
warranties granted by the Group on certain products
are recognised based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of installation services
rendered, repairs or returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in the income statement, or
in equity if it relates to items that are recognised in
the same or a different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the balance sheet
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Cont’d)

Income tax (Cont’d)

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

° where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely,
previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (Cont’d)
Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income over the periods
necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis
to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on the
following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the
Group maintains neither managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Employee benefits
Pension schemes
The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administrated fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of its
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowings costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the
income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Dividends
Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained profits
within the equity section of the balance sheet, until
they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded using
the functional currency rates ruling at the date of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (Cont’d)
Foreign currencies (Cont’d)
The functional currencies of Mainland China
subsidiaries are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the balance sheet date, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are
included in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of Mainland China
subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of Mainland
China subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting
date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its property portfolio. The Group has
determined that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are
leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed
criteria in making that judgement. Investment
property is a property held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and

Estimates (Cont’d)

Judgements (Cont’d)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties (Cont’d)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately
(or leased out separately under a finance lease), the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the
portions could not be sold separately, the property is
an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are discussed below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised. Where the actual or expected
tax positions of the relevant companies of the Group
in future are different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax
assets and income tax charge in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements And
Estimates (Cont’d)

Estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
Write-down of inventories to net realisable value
is made based on the ageing and estimated net
realisable value of inventories. The assessment
of the write-down amount involves management’s
judgements and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the
carrying value of the inventories and the write-down
charge/reversal in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.

Product warranty and installation provisions
Product warranty and installation provisions are
made based on sales volume and past experience
of the level of installation service rendered, repairs
or returns. The assessment of the provision amount
involves management’s judgements and estimates.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is
different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the carrying amount of the product
warranty and installation provisions and the provision
amount charge/reversal in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Useful lives of items of property, plant and
equipment

The management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to industry cycles.
The depreciation charge will increase where the
useful lives are less than the previously estimated
useful lives, or it will write off or write down obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.
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4.

Segment Information

Segment information is presented by way of the
Group’s primary segment reporting basis, by
business segment. In determining the Group’s
geographical segments, revenues are attributed
to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments
based on the location of the assets. No further
geographical segment information is presented as
over 90% of the Group’s revenue is derived from
customers based in Mainland China, and over 90%
of the Group’s assets are located in Mainland China.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured
and managed separately according to the nature of
their operations and the products and services they
provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers
products and services which are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of the other
business segments. Summary details of the business
segments are as follows:

(@) the washing machine business segment
manufactures and sells washing machines;

(b) the water heater business segment
manufactures and sells water heaters;

(c) the mobile handset business segment
manufactures and sells mobile phones and it
was discontinued in the prior year (note 12); and

(d) the corporate and others segment includes
general corporate income and expense items.
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4. Segment Information (Cont’d) 4.
Business segments
The following tables present revenue, profit and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for

the Group’s business segments for the years ended
31 December 2007 and 2006.

B ARETEE - AEHEMAXER -

Continuing operations Discontinued operation
FABEER BREAEEE
Washing machine business ~ Water heater business Corporate and others Eliminations Total Mobile handset business Consolidated
FRRER BKERE AFREM 1 it BETAER 7
2007 2008 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
CERtE IREIAE CERtE CEEAE CERtE CIERE C3RtF CSRAE CIBtE IERAE CIME RN CIME 3TN
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS$'000  HKS'000
7 &1 77 7Er 7&r 7E 7&r b7:23 i 79 & 7éi iz 7Er
S
Seqment revenue: AU : &
Sdestoertemal  [FVBEFRE g
customers 6,026500 5650895 1622739 1250810 - - - - 8549239 6901705 - 1014163 8549239 7915868 &
Otherrevenue A& 1,740 13,814 12,647 12520 13 - - - 24,400 26,334 - 917 24,400 21,251 E
c
[=
Total it 6,038,240 5664700 1635386 1,263,330 13 - - - 8573639 6928039 - 105080 8573630 7943119 <. ﬁ
el
3%
Q ffr
Seqment results ~ HEZE 2,525 220,980 86,388 426 (22,010) (47217) - - 335,903 17979 - (49,760) 335,003 168,219 %_ lF(T
>
Interestincome ~~ FISHA 10,121 16,626 - 18 10,421 16,874 g %
Finance costs ~ BEAA (24,068) (11109) - (3517)  (24,068) (14,626) IS
Gainondisposal  HEBRIEEZE 3 %
ot BobE S
discontinued "IE i%
operation - - - 156,449 - 156,449
) - 95
Proft before tax BRI 321,956 203,49 - 103,420 321,056 326,916
Tax #E 96,259) (39,710) - - 96,259) (39,710)
Profitfor the year  EREH 225,607 183,786 - 103,420 205,607 287,206
Assets and £EHEE
liabilities
Segment assets ~ HREE 1,957,685 2237560 536,256 533,020 33,266 119 (97,785) (60163) 2429422 2711536 - - 2400422 271536
Deforred tax assets EEREEE 49,506 34,681 - = 49,506 34,681
Tarecoierable  TRERE - 261 - - - 21
Cashandcash ~ BERHEZER
equivalents f 595,426 626,802 - - 505,426 626,802
Other unallocated  £fFAREE
assets 591,858 - - - 591,858 -
Total assets BE4E 3,666,212 3373280 - - 3666212 3373280
Seqment liabiliies  EEE 1567321 1775441 283,028 280,802 268,468 246,664 (97,785) (60163) 2,021,032 2,242,744 - - 20032 224074
Tax payable FEfHE 104,269 26,039 - - 104,269 26,039
Interest-bearing ~ FSEE
borrowings 214,973 136,800 - - 214978 136,800
Convertible notes  TAREE 169,344 161,665 - - 169,344 161,665
Deferred tax e
ligbilties - 7465 - - - 7465
Other unallocated  HftAAEREE
liabilities 204,470 - - - 214470 -
Totalliabiities ~ BEHE 2704088 2574713 - - Q14088 2504713
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4. Segment Information (Cont’d)
Business segments

4. DEER(#E)

EBDE(E)

Continuing operations Discontinued operation
RERERE BRLEEER
Washing machine business ~ Water heater business Corporate and others Eliminations Total Mobile handset business Consolidated
bzt 2 RkERR MR ¥ it BETARR &
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
CBRtE CREAE CBRtE CEEAE CERF CEIRRE CRRF DSRAE IRRE IERRE IRME IEENE CRME IIENE
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& 71 7Er 7T 7Er 7EL i 7EL i 71 7Er 71 7Er i
Other segment ~ EfAEEH
information
Depreciationand ~ FER &
amortisation 62,507 62,212 10,726 17,089 356 252 - - 82,589 19613 - 23813 82,589 103,426
Other unallocated  £fAESE
amounts 151 - - - 151 -
82,740 79,613 - 23813 82,740 103,426
Ceptl expndiure. RARS AR WA 1858 T 19 8 - - B f6B6H - % 6% 16878
Other unallocated  £fKAESE
amounts 58 - - - 58 =
95,447 168,618 - 185 95,447 168,753
Povisionfor ~ BEREH
obsoleteand  ZERE
slow-moving
inventories 5,226 4558 - 2672 - - - - 5,226 1230 - 23,008 5,206 30,238
Product warranty  ERRER
and et
installation
provisions 219,174 23219 56,074 189721 - - - - 336,748 362,946 - - 336,748 362,946
Loss on disposal/  HE /HiEHE
writg-off RERHER
of tems of B
property,
plant and
equipment, net 5,993 &342 - 99 - - - - 2993 2441 - - EEQQS 2444
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5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5. Wz~ Htbl AR W
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, WAL &5 EEHER 2R
represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, net SFE > HBREER REREZHH -
of value-added tax and after allowances for returns
and trade discounts.
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as Wi s ERARRKRZ ST :
follow:
Group REE
2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Revenue Wz
Continuing operations: FFERE R
Sale of washing machines $H & ST 6,926,500 5,650,895
Sale of water heaters SHEHIkEE 1,622,739 1,250,810
8,549,239 6,901,705
Discontinued operation: BRI
Sale of mobile handsets HEBBFH - 1,014,163
Other income and gains H g A R I
Continuing operations: SERE T .
Bank interest income RITRIE WA 10,121 5,438
Government subsidies* NEgSE i 9,773 1,627
Compensation received from 2 Uk 1t e e {E
suppliers™* 6,251 19,126
Consignment sale commission income BERAEMAEWRA
(note 15(c)) (BfEE 15(c)) 3,684 =
Interest income for a promissory note A& {+ZEF 2 UL A
(note 12) (Btat12) - 11,188
Gross rental income in respect of land Tt REF 2B U A EEE
and buildings 385 1,446
Others Ht 4,307 4,135
34,521 42,960
Discontinued operation: BRI ST
Bank interest income SRITHR B WA - 248
Gross rental income in respect of land Tt REF 2B A EEE
and buildings - 385
Others HAh - 532
— 1,165

*k

The government subsidies for the year represented
subsidies received from relevant authorities of the
Qingdao Municipality for advanced research and
development of washing machines and water heaters
and certain tax refunds received from a relevant
authority of the Wuhan Municipality.

The compensation received from suppliers in the
prior year included a compensation of approximately
HK$9,078,000 received from Qingdao Haier
Parts Procurement Co., Ltd., an affiliate to Haier
Investment, for the supply of defective materials used
in the production of water heaters. The compensation
amount was determined with reference to actual
costs incurred by the Group.

*k

FRARFHEDESENBARESSETARER
BT A BRI R BUKER 2 BRI R % F 2
BHEARKNEDTBEERMEL 28 TRH

FEEERHERERECERBEEREBBA
T EEEHENMREARATAMBEEARE
E BhOK B8 2 TR 4 B T W EY 2 B £ 49 9,078,000
B BEENESZEREEMEE ZBRERA
BE -
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6.

Profit Before Tax BR Bt B ER R
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after AEBzBRBEHEANOR/ GIA) T 5
charging/(crediting) #: BIE4 !
2007 2006
—BELF —EEAE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BtaE FET FET
Cost of inventories sold EHEFEERA 5,991,925 5,961,423
Depreciation E 16 80,061 101,360
Recognition of prepaid land TR TA L H#h K
premiums 17 2,324 1,427
Amortisation of intangible assets* T EE#E" 18 355 639
Research and development costs* MR REEER 60,505 87,183
Auditors’ remuneration Z BT EN & 8,000 7,700
Employee benefits expense EEEFFEX
(including directors’ remuneration (BiEEEH<E
-note 8): - ffEE8)
Wages and salaries TEREFS 422,978 163,486
Equity-settled share option LU A E < IR R
expense T H - 409
Net pension scheme contributions  EBREFHEHEF R H
and other benefits 1@ R F 28 59,426 38,550
482,404 202,445
Minimum lease payments under T REFRERNZ
operating leases RKEESIE
in respect of land and buildings 41,103 24,143
Provision for obsolete and slow- BERFHTFERE"
moving inventories* 5,226 30,238
Product warranty and installation ERRERZERE
provisions 29 336,748 362,946
Loss on disposal/write-off of items  H%E& / MW - BE
of property, plant and equipment, REEEE BB F
net** Bg > 5,993 2,441
Foreign exchange differences, net  [E % =48 %4E 25,990 (7,727)

*k

The amortisation of intangible assets, research and
development costs and provision for obsolete and
slow-moving inventories for the year are included
in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated
income statement.

The loss on disposal/write-off of items of property,
plant and equipment, net, is included in “Other
expenses” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.

The disclosures presented in this note include
those amounts charged/credited in respect of the
discontinued operation.

*k

FRAETLEERE HRKRABERUR
BRERFHEFERBENGRESRERIIA
[SHEMA IR -

HE/MEME - BERRRFBERZER
FHERGESRERIIAITAMER R -

MM RESEBERERILE
EEBNR/ GEAZEE -



Notes to Financial Statements
B ER R MIEE

31 December 2007
—EFtFE+=A=1—H

7. Finance Costs 7. ®MEHRKR
Group REE
2007 2006
—EELF —EEREF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Continuing operations: FEREFER
Interest on borrowings wholly BEREFREZHEEZEZ
repayable within five years BERE 11,039 3,650
Interest on convertible notes (note 28) AR Z1EFI B (Ff£28) 7,679 7,459
Interest on deferred consideration ELERMSRERR
payable (note 26) (H1EE26) 6,748 —
Total interest expense FIE X A% 25,466 11,109
Less: Interest capitalised W BREARZRE (1,398) —
24,068 11,109
Discontinued operation: BARIE ST
Interest on borrowings wholly AREFERAZEER &
repayable within five years EFIE - 3,517
Total finance costs RE KA 4ERE 24,068 14,626
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8. Directors’ Remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed

pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of

EEMe
AEEREEBHEXRSMERATES L
AR A (T LR A ) R BB D AR 161

Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong RIEE2ESMENT
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
Group rEE
2007 2006
—EBELF —EBERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Fees we 720 860
Other emoluments: HE < -
Salaries, allowances and benefits FHE  RMREYFE - —
in kind
Performance related bonuses FRIMIEAL - —
Employee share option benefits EEERERT - =
Pension scheme contributions BREcHEIER - =
720 860
(a) Independent non-executive directors: (@) BIFEHTES:
The fees paid to independent non-executive FANFBILIFEHTEESE2HWEW
directors during the year were as follows: T:
2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Wu Yinong RIRE 240 240
Liu Xiao Feng * 2| g > 126 —
Yu Hon To, David * AERE 126 —
Lam Kin Kau, Mark ** FRIZER ** 114 240
Fung Hoi Wing, Henry ** e ™ 114 240
Lau Ho Wai, Lucas *** 2| 7] A - 140
720 860
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (Cont’d)

(a) Independent non-executive directors: (Cont’d)
* Dr. Liu Xiao Feng and Mr. Yu Hon To, David,
were appointed as directors of the Company on

21 June 2007.

> Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark, and Mr. Fung Hoi Wing,
Henry, resigned as directors of the Company on
21 June 2007.

Mr. Lau Ho Wai, Lucas, resigned as a director
of the Company on 28 July 2006.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2006: Nil).

8.

EEME#E)
(a) BIFNTES: (&
© ABBETRAEEEEN-ZF
tFAAS+-BEEEREAT
EE o

O MEBEREERBBREENR=-ZTE
tEARAZ T —HBELARARES -

> BAMARER_ZEERELA
ZtHtNERERLAES -

FRLEFEFEMENSTFBLIFERT
EE2HN(—ZE2RF  HE) -

N Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2007
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (Cont’d)
(b) Executive directors:
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits

Fees in kind
H& 2R

ik ENRE
HK$'000 HK$’000
FEx FET

8. EEM=m

(b)

Performance
related
bonuses

KBRA
HK$’000
FET

BITESE:
Employee
share Pension

option scheme Total
benefits contributions remuneration

E&
BRERN BAKSTHEMT Hewm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET & A

2007 —EELE

Yang Mian Mian BEG - -

Wu Ke Song Bz - -
Liang Hai Shan 251 - -
Cao Chun Hua EFE - -
Cui Shao Hua BE - -
Sun Jing Yan * BRE" - -

Chai Yong Sen ** LeX - -
Song Chun Guang * R&X* - _

2006 ZERAE

Yang Mian Mian B&S = -
Wu Ke Song R = -
Liang Hai Shan 28 - -
Cao Chun Hua EFE = -
Cui Shao Hua EDE - -
Chai Yong Sen ™ 4k&™ - -
Song Chun Guang ™ REH* - -

Mr. Sun Jing Yan was appointed as a director of
the Company on 8 March 2007.

*%

Mr. Chai Yong Sen and Mr. Song Chun Guang
resigned as directors of the Company on 15
February 2007.

There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

* BREEER=-ZZLtE=ANH
BEZEEARTRES -

tFEZATHEAREALAES -

FABBESIT IRRAEBEREL
A%z 25 -
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9. Five Highest paid Employees 9. hEEREFHMES
The five highest paid employees during the year FALERESFMNEERTFE —REES(ZE
included one director (2006: one), details of whose ERF:—F) FRAEEzMEeHFBFEER
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of FXHiFE8 c FAMB(=ZZERE  MF)
the remuneration of the remaining four (2006: four) FEZESHHMES 2MESFBUT :
non-director, highest paid employees for the year are
as follows:
Group AEEH
2007 2006
—ETLF —EEREF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
5
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - JEBER BRI 3,189 4,682 %
Performance related bonuses RBPIEAL - = g
Employee share option benefits EEEREREF - 409 !
Pension scheme contributions EREFTEIEX 46 37 Eﬁ
3,235 5,128 ém
o
The number of non-director, highest paid employees FEERaFHEEMSETIIEESHER %?.:5
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is ZAEWMT §
as follows: é%
T
Number of employees
EEAH
2007 2006
—EELF —EEREF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £2%1,000,00038 7T 3 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 B TE
2,000,000 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 BT E
2,500,000 7T 1 —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 BT ZE
3,000,000 78 7T - 1
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10. Tax 10. BiIE

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been FR O AEENETMEEE B 2R R
made as the Group did not generate any assessable o A B|EHBFRFNEHREB(-ES
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2006: NE &) o

Nil).

Tax on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have R EE it ERERB &R 2 B8 » iR
been calculated at the applicable PRC corporate BAECERSHR(EEMESH NEAM
income tax (“CIT”) rates. Certain subsidiaries of ZiHE o AEEETHEARNGEZEHIE
the Group are entitled to preferential tax treatments BESE  BEENRECERSH  UKRE
including a reduction in CIT and a full exemption BEEMNFERTMEFEESHHM R
from CIT for two years starting from their first profit- FfEHl UREREE=FEHRR50%
making year followed by a 50% reduction in CIT for BB o

the next consecutive three years.

Group REE
2007 2006
—ETLHF —EERE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Current — Mainland China BUER — AR KR 116,160 34,963
Deferred (note 30) IEFE (H2F 30) (19,901) 4,747
Total tax charge for the year FRAFIEX HAZE 96,259 39,710
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10. Tax (Cont’d)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to

profit/(loss) before tax using the statutory rates

for the jurisdictions in which the Company and its

subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at

the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the
applicable rates (i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the
effective tax rates, are as follows:

Group — 2007

10. BiIE#E)
BAQTARAEMB AT EEEZEE
BMEGTHERBADER / (BB 2B BB H -
BERERRRTEREIHZHE UK

BRABE(AEER =) BERBI R 2 HRM

T

AEE ——ZTTLF

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
EE HEI KR @t
HK$’000 % HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
FET % FET % FET %
Profit/(loss) before tax ~ BrBiAIAA / (&
) (32,320) 354,276 321,956
Tax at the statutory tax AT Z5HE
rate A (5,656) 17.5 116,911 33.0 111,255 34.6
Income not subject to FERBIURA
tax (723) 2.2 - - (723) (0.2)
Expenses not deductible  REIHIFHEL
for tax 6,379 (19.7) 91,136 25.7 97,515 30.2
Tax losses not AERBERFE
recognised - - 1,289 0.4 1,289 0.4
Tax exemption HIERR - - (113,077) (31.9) (113,077 (35.1)
Tax charge at the BASEZBR
Group’s effective rate BETE 2
BEXH - - 96,259 27.2 96,259 29.9
Represented by: &
Tax charge BRILEEER
attributable to FEfh 2 BiEE
a discontinued i (ffzE12)
operation (note 12) -
Tax charge SESEERRE
attributable BB
to continuing
operations 96,259
96,259

T LEFR
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10. Tax (Cont’d)

10. BIE(#)

Group — 2006 REE — —TEAE
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
Bk B KB #st
HK$°000 % HK$°000 % HK$’000 %
FET % FET % FET %
Profit before tax PR AR (24E
(including profit BARIEREE
from a discontinued #2EF)
operation) 62,029 264,887 326,916
Tax at the statutory tax R EEH R E
rate ZHiE 10,855 175 87,413 33.0 98,268 30.0
Income not subject to FERBIA
tax (20,478) (33.0) - — (20478) (6.3)
Expenses not deductible  REIHHEL
for tax 9,571 15.5 7,330 2.8 16,901 5.2
Tax losses not AERARIEFE
recognised 52 - - = 52 -
Temporary differences ~ KRERZREEL
not recognised - - 2,384 0.9 2,384 0.7
Tax exemption HEHRR - = (57,417) (21.7) (57,417) (17.5)
BRASE B
Tax charge at the MEFE 2R
Group’s effective rate EXH - - 39,710 15.0 39,710 12.1
Represented by: &
Tax charge BARIEREE
attributable to BEL 2B
a discontinued B (4
operation (note 12) Z12) -
Tax charge HELEEK
attributable P 2 BiE
to continuing
operations 39,710
39,710

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC (the “New CIT Law”), which is effective from 1
January 2008. Under the New CIT Law, the CIT rate
applicable to domestic companies will decrease
from 33% to 25% from 1 January 2008. According
to HKAS 12, deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled. The change in CIT
rate has had no significant impact on the results and
financial position of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2007.

RZZZLFE=A+-H  2EARK=EH
HEEEMEBHE(HEEMBR LD B
“EE\FE-A—HAREM - RIEFEER
BEE BRCECEACEMSSEE =
ZEENF—HA—HEHIBURE25% ° R
BEEBSTEASE 12 EXEHEBEER
EEFEAEREREEREEAGEHEZ
TEHE AR R E - BEMESHEEHH K
EEBE_ZEELFT-A=+—HBLEE
ZEBRUBMREEE R E -
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11.

12.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the

Parent

Of the Group’s profit attributable to equity
holders of the parent of HK$172,131,000 (2006:
HK$262,349,000), a loss of HK$31,882,000 (2006:
profit of HK$48,698,000) has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 33(b)).

Discontinued Operation

In 2006, the Group disposed of its entire interest
in Pegasus Telecom (Qingdao) Co., Lid. (“Pegasus
Qingdao”) and Pegasus Electronic (Qingdao)
Co., Ltd. (“Pegasus Electronic”) to Qingdao Haier
Group Holdings (BVI) Limited (“Haier BVI”) for a
consideration aggregating approximately HK$411
million. The consideration was satisfied by way of a
promissory note issued by Haier BVI to the Company.
The promissory note was unsecured, bore interest at
5.2% per annum and had a one-year term.

Haier BVI is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and a subsidiary of Haier Corp. Pegasus
Qingdao and Pegasus Electronic were principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of mobile
handsets. The above transaction was approved by
the independent shareholders of the Company at a
special general meeting held on 15 June 2006 and
was completed on 27 June 2006.

11.

12.

BRRARESE ARMGEFN

ERBAAREREAELAEAER R
172,131,000 (= & T KX F .
262,349,000 7t ) # » K518 31,882,000 &
TT(ZZZRF )= 7F48,698,0008 T) E
TEARD B 2 R ER ARIE (B3 33(b)) °

ERIEREER

REZZEARE  AEEQNSE8REREIE
Bz (BVI)E R A B (EEBVI]) HEHERR
EBEM(ZER)ERAA(IREEE N RRE
BEEF(BFRB)ERAAIRBEET 22
EhHE - RES £ 4 %411,000,0007 7T ©
BRI BVIEBBA QR BITRMNEELZLR
B o AN EEEKIF - REFR52FFT
BERFHA—F -

BEBVIAARAZEERRE SEEE LD
AlZMEBRAR REEERREEFEZER
BRERHEEBHFR XK - LHRFE
RIZEZERFAATHBRTZRERER K
BLEADNTB/IRRAE  WER=-TF
NERAZHERER °

N Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2007
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12.

Discontinued Operation (Cont’d)
The results of Pegasus Qingdao and Pegasus
Electronic are presented below:

12. CRILEEEK (F)
RESERREESTZEESHNMT :

For the From
year ended 1 January to
31 December 27 June
2007 2006
BE-_ZZtHF —EERE
+=ZA=+—H —B—H%
LHEE ANA=TtH
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAETT FET
Revenue Wi - 1,014,163
Expenses X - (1,063,675)
Finance costs L& R AN - (3,517)
Loss before tax from the discontinued B #& I 48 & %7% & B AT 5 12
operation - (53,029)
Tax R - —
Loss for the year from the ERIEREER 2 FAEIER
discontinued operation — (53,029)
Gain on disposal of the discontinued HEB K IEEEEH 2 RS
operation — 156,449
Profit for the year from the BRI E T 2 FRIEF
discontinued operation - 103,420
Earnings per share: BREF :

BEA RECKLEEER

Basic, from the discontinued
operation

5.66 HK cents

B RACKRLEEER

Diluted, from the discontinued
operation

5.34 HK cents
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12. Discontinued Operation (Cont’d)

12.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
amounts for the discontinued operation are based on:

BRIEEEEEE)
DRIEHER S SREARBERN S
BERE T HIRIEsE

2007
—BTLE

Earnings
Profit attributable to ordinary equity

=k

BAREBRESEAR

holders of the parent from the BRI L ERRT

discontinued operation - HK$103,420,000
Shares [iidv)
Weighted average number of ARFTESRERERZ

ordinary shares in issue during the  FREEITZER 21N

year used in the basic earnings T

per share calculation (as adjusted (£ A EE DA BR F A 7R

to reflect the consolidation of the RNAIZEBIRE D)

Company’s ordinary shares during (MaE31)

the year) (note 31)

1,852,381,269 1,826,314,968

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the diluted
earnings per share calculation
(as adjusted to reflect the
consolidation of the Company’s
ordinary shares during the year)
(note 31)

AR EEREERA
BRI I8
(REFRE LR BRF A A
DA ZEBREH)

(BaE31)

1,949,421,909 1,936,194,326

The net cash flows incurred by Pegasus Qingdao and

Pegasus Electronic are as follows:

REEERRBEETFMEEZREREFHE
M

For the From

year ended 1 January to

31 December 27 June

2007 2006

BE-—ZZtHF —EBEREF

+=ZA=+—H —A—HZ

LHEE ANA=Zt+EtH

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Operating activities B ZETE - 54,774
Investing activities REEE - (135)
Financing activities Al & E B - (45,991)
Net cash inflow BeRAFEHE - 8,648

T LEFR
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13.

14.

DIVIDENDS
No dividend has been paid or declared by the
Company during the year (2006: Nil).

The dividend disclosed for the year ended 31
December 2006 represented dividend declared by
the Group’s subsidiaries to their respective previous
owners, out of their retained profits determined in
accordance with the applicable financial rules and
regulations of the PRC.

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Equity

Holders of the Parent

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as adjusted to reflect the
consolidation of the Company’s ordinary shares
during the year (note 317).

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, adjusted to
reflect the interest on the convertible notes. The
weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings
per share calculation, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares
into ordinary shares, as adjusted to reflect the
consolidation of the Company’s ordinary shares
during the year (note 317).

13.

14.

RE
FRARRAAEBERNRNEREARS(ZZ
TREFHE) -

FiFESE—EER"F+-A=1+—HLHF
EzREEAEENHBEARDREFTEERZ
MR R EREEAREENOEESE
ZRIBEBAERZBE

BRARESEARLERAFN

BREABANZEHEIREFATLAER
RESBARBGENRFRACBITERRZ
MEFHHAHE(RHBRURRFABZAER
Rz BBREG) (ML 31) -

BREBRAN2EHEIRBFAZILAER
RERA ARG R (2 FHE LU R AT 2 IR
REMNB)FE - SHERAZEERMEF
HEDARGESREABABHAAZFR
SERITEHBERHYE  URBRAFETERS
B EEHEEERAEBRMEERT
ZEBRMEFGB(ERARURRERNE
RARZEBREH) (HaE31) °
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14.

Earnings Per Share Attributable to Equity 14.

BRAREFEAERLGEREFN

Holders of the Parent (Cont’d) (&)
2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Earnings |
Profit attributable to ordinary equity ARGTEEREARARR &
holders of the parent, as used in the AEIEBRESE AEMN
basic earnings per share calculation: A
From continuing operations REFELEEK 172,131,000 158,929,000
From a discontinued operation REBKILREE - 103,420,000
172,131,000 262,349,000
Interest on convertible notes (note 7) AR EE RS (FaE7) 7,679,000 7,459,000
Profit attributable to ordinary equity RETATRREBER S/ 2 &
holders of the parent before interest NRIEBREZTE AEMN
on convertible notes sa Al 179,810,000 269,808,000
Attributable to: FEAL -
Continuing operations HEREEWR 179,810,000 166,388,000
Discontinued operation ERIEREEK - 103,420,000
179,810,000 269,808,000
Number of shares
R EE
2007 2006
—EELF —EEREF
Shares % 17
Weighted average number of ordinary AR ESRERER < F
shares in issue during the year used A ETERRMEFR
in the basic earnings per share 2

calculation (as adjusted to reflect
the consolidation of the Company’s
ordinary shares during the year)
(note 31)

Effect of dilution — weighted average

(RERABEURRFEREARR
Az EBREG) (HaE31)

1,852,381,269

BwEYE — TERMNETS

1,826,314,968

number of ordinary shares (as B (K TR DR R F A AR
adjusted to reflect the consolidation of AT ZEBEREG)
the Company’s ordinary shares during  (#fz£37)
the year) (note 31)
Share options BB RS R 2,596,196 13,270,530
Convertible notes I L 94,444,444 96,608,828
97,040,640 109,879,358

Total

FH 1,949,421,909

1,936,194,326

T LEFR
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15. Related Party Transactions
In addition to the related party transactions detailed

elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group

had the following material transactions with related

parties during the year.

(a)

On 15 June 2007, Qingdao Economy and
Technology Development Zone Haier Water
Heater Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
transfer agreement with Qingdao Jiaonan Haier
Microwave Manufacturing Co., Ltd. (“Qingdao
Microwave”), an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of Haier Corp, pursuant to which
Qingdao Microwave agreed to transfer certain
building and plant (the “Assets”) to Qingdao
Economy and Technology Development
Zone Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd. for a total
consideration of approximately RMB26,554,000
(approximately HK$27,085,000). The
consideration of this transaction was
determined with reference to the valuation
of the Assets conducted by an independent
qualified valuer in Mainland China.

The transfer agreement subsequently lapsed on
30 September 2007 (being the long-stop date
of the transfer agreement) because Qingdao
Economy and Technology Development Zone
Haier Water Heater Co., Ltd. failed to receive the
revised state-owned land use right certificate in
connection with the building to be transferred.

15. BBEALXRS
BRE SR B MR MO F L ZBAEA LR
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15. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(b)

On 4 September 2007, Haier Washing Machines
Holdings (BVI) Limited (“Haier WM BVI”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as purchaser entered into equity
transfer agreements with Indesit Company
S.p.A. and Indesit Company Luxembourg
S.A. (“Indesit Group”) as vendors pursuant
to which Haier WM BVI agreed to acquire
and Indesit Group agreed to sell the 30%
shareholding of Haier Indesit (Qingdao)
Washing Machine Co., Ltd. and Haier Indesit
(Qingdao) Electrical Appliance Co., Ltd. for
an aggregate consideration of €14,310,000
(approximately HK$162,977,000). Haier Indesit
(Qingdao) Washing Machine Co., Ltd. and Haier
Indesit (Qingdao) Electrical Appliance Co., Ltd.
are indirect 70%-owned subsidiaries of the
Company. The consideration of this transaction
was determined after arm’s length negotiations
between Haier WM BVI and Indesit Group with
reference to similar transactions in the relevant
industries.

The above transaction was completed on 24
December 2007.
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15. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(c)

The Company’s subsidiaries, Qingdao Haier (c)

Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao Jiaonan
Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Hefei Haier
Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde
Haier Electric Co., Ltd., Foshan Shunde Haier
Intelligent Electronic Co., Ltd., Chongqging Haier
Washing Machine Co., Ltd. and Qingdao Haier
Electronics Sales Co., Ltd. had the following
material transactions with Haier Corp, Haier

Investment, their subsidiaries and associates

(collectively referred to as “Haier Affiliates”):

15. BEATRZ (#&)

ARAMBLRAEESBEAREER
NF EEBEBRARKERLIF
BREFAREERAR ~ LT IE
REWERBMRLOAF - HILMIERES
FEHREFARLF - EEBRRK
HERQANESERERHEAR
NAESHEEELNR  BRERE - H
MEBARRBELR (BRI SEE
BALDBETUATEARS :

Group AEE
2007 2006
—EBLHF —EERF
Notes HK$’°000 HK$°000
KtaE FETT FET
Export sales of washing o O SE & s
machines (i) 331,603 346,991
Domestic sales of washing Eilakich== T Y5
machines and water heaters #Hok g (ii) 480,068 21,901
Purchases of raw materials BREgER (iii) 4,009,916 3,105,709
Printing and packaging fee ENRIE BB H
expenses (iv) 11,126 4,376
Mould charges BABLH (v) 72,652 45,640
Utility service fee expenses AARBEZH (vi) 16,518 12,441
Logistics charges MRELH (vii) 189,795 125,621
Promotion fee expenses EEEXH (viii) 58,980 47,984
Other service fee expenses HRIEE L H (ix) 50,046 31,373
Interest expenses FEXH (x) 3,336 269
Interest income FE WA (x) 4,613 1,808
Trademark licence fee expenses B2} R E & H (xi) 40,195 32,315
Consignment sale commission ERASMAEWA
income (xii) 3,684 —
Sales of gift products HER R (xiii) 5,644 -
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15. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(c) (Cont’d)
Notes:

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The export sales of washing machines were
made to Haier Electrical Appliances Co., Ltd.
(“Haier Electrical”), a subsidiary of Haier
Investment, at selling prices representing
differences between the selling prices of
washing machines mutually agreed and
the selling expenses of Haier Electrical not
exceeding 2.5% of the selling prices of washing
machines.

The domestic sales of washing machines and
water heaters were determined at rates mutually
agreed between the relevant parties.

The purchases of materials were charged based
on the lower of the average market price or the
consolidated and integrated tender and bidding
price plus a commission of no more than 2.6%
of the aforementioned purchase price.

The printing and packaging fee expenses were
charged on actual cost basis plus a processing
fee of not higher than those charged by
independent third parties.

The moulds were charged with reference to the
average market tender and bidding price plus
actual administrative costs.

The utility service fee expenses were charged
based on the state-prescribed prices plus
actual administrative costs.

The logistics charges were charged based
on an actual cost basis and on terms more
favourable than those offered by independent
third parties.

The promotion fee expenses were charged
based on 1.2% of the domestic sales of
washing machines.

The other service fee expenses were
determined with reference to actual costs
incurred.

15. BEATRZ (#&)

(c) (#&

Hret -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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(viii)
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15. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

(c)

()

(xi)

(xii)

(xiil)

The interest expenses and income were
determined with reference to the standard rates
published by the People’s Bank of China.

The trademark licence fee expenses were
charged at a rate of 0.8% of certain sales made
by Qingdao Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd.,
Foshan Shunde Haier Electric Co., Ltd., Hefei
Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd., Qingdao
Jiaonan Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd. and
Chongging Haier Washing Machine Co., Ltd.

The consignment sale commission income
was determined at 2% of the turnover of
the sales of the outstanding inventories of
washing machines and water heaters owned
by subsidiaries of Haier Investment at 31
December 2006.

The sales of gift products were made at selling
prices no less than that sold by the Group to
independent third parties

15. BEATRZ (#&)

(c) (#&)
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15. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(c)

During the year, the Company’s subsidiaries,
Haier Indesit (Qingdao) Washing Machine
Co., Ltd., Haier Indesit (Qingdao) Electrical
Appliance Co., Ltd., Qingdao Economy and
Technology Development Zone Haier Water
Heater Co., Ltd., Wuhan Haier Water Heater Co.,
Ltd. and Chongqging Haier Water Heater Co.,
Ltd. had the following material transactions with
Haier Affiliates:

15. BEATRZ (#&)

(©)

FR - AREZHBLAEHEBRE
(BR)ARKARLE - BHEREE
(BEB)ERBERAAE - EELBEEM
MEBEESHEAKRZERLF - REE
MEKBARA AR EEEREAKSR
BERARESHBEBA L EETTS
ERXRS

REE

Group
2007 2006
—BBLHF —EERE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
HtaE FET FET
Sales of washing machines SHE LT (xiv) 509,219 1,257,317
Sales of water heaters SHE FAOKEE (xv) 6,047 1,238,658
Purchases of raw materials Brig ER (xvi) 2,141,559 1,664,676
Printing and packaging fee R BB H (xvii) 13,641 4,187

expenses

Mould charges BAEBLTH (xviii) 27,872 16,164
Utility service fee expenses AARBEZH (xix) 35,196 21,905
Logistics charges YImE & (xx) 91,448 74,421
Promotion fee expenses EEELH (xxi) 33,452 31,619
Other service fee expenses HMREE L H (xxii) 39,645 35,962
Interest expenses FEXH (xxiii) 7,707 3,381
Interest income R E U A (xxiii) 482 258

(xiv) The sales of washing machines for the year
ended 31 December 2007 represented export
sales made to Haier Electrical at selling prices
representing differences between the selling
prices of washing machines mutually agreed
and the selling expenses of Haier Electrical not
exceeding 2.5% of the selling prices of washing
machines.

The sales of washing machines for the year
ended 31 December 2006 comprised domestic
sales made to subsidiaries of Haier Investment
and export sales made to Haier Electrical. The
domestic sales of washing machines were made
at selling prices quoted by the subsidiaries of
Haier Investment to third party distributors less
discounts ranging from 2% to 50%. The export
sales of washing machines were made at selling
prices representing differences between the
selling prices of washing machines mutually
agreed and the selling expenses of Haier
Electrical not exceeding 2.5% of the selling
prices of washing machines.

xivy B@EZE=-ZZtF+=-A=+—HL
FEZHEXRRKERBEENSE
FHEZRARKEEBESHESRE
X HEMX(TEBAKRKEEZ
25%) 2 ERM 2 EBREBRERE
EETZHOHE -

BE_ZTETAF+-A=1+—-HIL
FEZHEARKEEQERRE
ZHBLARZBEREE - UKk @EE
MEREXZHOME - KR
BAEEDREEHEREZHEL
RIEE=A 2 #HERz EER2%
E£50% N E 2T M#EST o I
ZHOEENRBEESENETHE
ZRARKEEE SHEREX 2
ERX(PRBBRREEE22.5%)
Z =R AET e
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15. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)
Notes: (Cont’d)

(c)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

The sales of water heaters for the year ended 31
December 2007 represented export sales made
to Haier Electrical at selling prices representing
differences between the selling prices of
water heaters mutually agreed and the selling
expenses of Haier Electrical not exceeding 2.5%
of the selling prices of water heaters.

The sales of water heaters for the year ended
31 December 2006 comprised domestic sales
made to subsidiaries of Haier Investment and
export sales made to Haier Electrical. The
domestic sales of water heaters were made
at selling prices quoted by the subsidiaries of
Haier Investment to third party distributors less
discounts ranging from 2% to 50%. The export
sales of water heaters were made at selling
prices representing differences between the
selling prices of water heaters mutually agreed
and the selling expenses of Haier Electrical not
exceeding 2.5% of the selling prices of water
heaters.

The purchases of raw materials were charged
based on the lower of the average market price
or the consolidated and integrated tender and
bidding price plus a commission of no more
than 2.6% of the aforementioned purchase
price.

The printing and packaging fee expenses were
charged on actual cost basis plus a processing
fee of not higher than those charged by
independent third parties.

(xviii) The moulds were charged with reference to the

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

average market tender and bidding price plus
actual administrative costs.

The utility service fee expenses were charged
with reference to the state-prescribed prices
plus actual administrative costs.

The logistics charges were determined on
terms no less favourable than those offered by
independent third parties.

The promotion fee expenses were charged
at 1.2% of the domestic sales of washing
machines and water heaters (2006: with
reference to a rate of 1.2% of the domestic
sales of washing machines and water heaters
made by subsidiaries of Haier Investment).

15. BEATRZ (#&)

(©)

Hiat -

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)
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15. Related Party Transactions (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Notes: (Cont’d)
(xxii) Other service fee expenses were determined
with reference to actual costs incurred.

(xxiii) The interest expenses and income were
determined with reference to the standard rates
published by the People’s Bank of China.

As at the balance sheet date, Haier Corp
provided corporate guarantees up to
RMB201,000,000 (2006: RMB156,800,000)
(equivalent to HK$214,973,000 (2006:
HK$153,726,000)) to Haier Group Finance Co.,
Ltd. (“Haier Finance”), a subsidiary of Haier
Corp and a financial institution approved by
the People’s Bank of China, for loan facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Compensation of key management personnel of

15. BEATRZ (#&)

(©)

Hrat : (#&)
(xxii) RtpRBEBEXHDSEMELERR
HAEE -

(xxiii) FEXHRBATIZZ HEARR
THEMEESEEE -

REER  SEEEARAOEKELD
AEREENEEREE AR SR
%] —BEPEARRITRY 28
HE) =4 AR % 201,000,000 (=
ZZXF: AK¥156,800,0007T)
(FHE R #214,973,0008 T (=ZZ2F
NEE 1 153,726,00058 78 )) Z D A IE
R AEREEEETHE AR ZERK °

REBTEEBABZHH

the Group:

2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFETT FET
Short term employee benefits EHEEEF 2,819 2,948
Post-employment benefits B EA 12 12
Share-based payments BB AR 2 A5 2 S B - 409

Total compensation paid to key ENEEEE AS 25
management personnel FEbG 2,831 3,369

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

Except for item (e), the above related party
transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions or connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

EEMEc AMFRHRMBHRRM
8o

BREX(e)EEBS » LMEEBBALRS
TR ETRAUE1AATRRE 25
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment

16. % - MERRE

Group Vi
Tools,
furniture
Plant and and Motor Construction
Buildings machinery fixtures vehicles  in progress Total
IE KA
BT HERRAS R%EE RE ERIR oy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TE7 F#7m T FEx &7 TET
31 December 2007 ZEEtE
T=R=1-H
At 1 January 2007: NS g:d
—A-R:
Cost A 382,174 782,861 12,266 3,589 96,143 1,277,033
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z3HTERFE
and impairment (107,062) (462,469) (4,910) (2,562) - (577,003)
Net carrying amount REEE 275,112 320,392 7,356 1,027 96,143 700,030
Cost at 1 January 2007, net of R=ZZ+F-F—H
accumulated depreciation LB BHRE
and impairment SHTERAE 275,112 320,392 7,356 1,027 96,143 700,030
Additions B 3,738 27,97 5,202 843 57,693 95,447
Disposals/write-off HE /Misk - (6,189) (1) = — (6,200)
Depreciation provided during ~ FRITERE
the year (18,702) (58,223) (2,107) (1,029) - (80,061)
Transfers Ei 95,475 51,892 2,958 - (150,325) -
Exchange realignment E AR 22,569 22,934 731 65 2721 49,020
Cost at 31 December 2007, net R=EE+%E
of accumulated depreciation  +=A=+—Hx
and impairment A EMBRES
RERAE 378,192 358,777 14,129 906 6,232 758,236
At 31 December 2007: R=BZLE
tZA=1-A:
Cost A 512,199 850,242 20,532 4,536 6,232 1,393,741
Accumulated depreciation B TERHE
and impairment (134,007 (491,465) (6,403) (3,630) - (635,505)
Net carrying amount REFE 378,192 358,777 14,129 906 6,232 758,236
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)

16. M% - BERREE)

Tools,
furniture
Plant and and Motor Construction
Buildings machinery fixtures vehicles  in progress Total
IS KA
BT HERER R%EE RE ERIR At
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
AT AT FET AT AT AT
31 December 2006 ZEERE
t=R=1-H
At 1 January 2006: RZZERE
—-A-8
Cost AR 503,236 1,065,107 93,198 7,119 2,095 1,671,355
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHTERHE
and impairment (110,073) (498,564) (31,757) (6,341) - (646,735)
Net carrying amount REFE 393,163 566,543 61,441 1,378 2,095 1,024,620
Cost at 1 January 2006, net of R=ZZxE—F—H
accumulated depreciation LB Bk
and impairment ZHNERAE 393,163 566,543 61,441 1,378 2,095 1,024,620
Additions e 1,408 25,035 3,474 697 97,926 128,535
Disposals/write-off HE /Hish (15) (3,613) (288) (704) (791) (5,411)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR
(note 34) (f7z234) (111,483) (209,249) (49,310) = = (370,042)
Depreciation provided during ~ ERITEEE
the year (18,860) (73,830) (8,279) (391) - (101,360)
Transfers B 61 2,967 135 - (3,163) -
Exchange realignment ERAR 10,843 12,539 183 47 76 23,688
Cost at 31 December 2006, net R=EERE
of accumulated depreciation ~ +=A=+—Hx
and impairment A EMBREET
RERAE 275,112 320,392 7,356 1,027 96,143 700,030
At 31 December 2006: RZZEERE
tZA=t-A
Cost AR 382,174 782,861 12,266 3,589 96,143 1,277,033
Accumulated depreciation  EFHTERFE
and impairment (107,062) (462,469) (4,910) (2,562) - (577,003)
Net carrying amount REFE 275,112 320,392 7,356 1,027 96,143 700,030
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As at 31 December 2007, certain of the Group’s
buildings with an aggregate net book value
of approximately HK$267,009,000 (2006:
HK$219,008,000) did not have building ownership
certificates registered under the names of the
respective subsidiaries of the Company.

On 24 February 2005 and 20 September 2006, Haier
Corp issued two undertakings to the Company
pursuant to which Haier Corp agreed to provide
other suitable properties to the Group to ensure
the continuing operations of certain subsidiaries of
the Company operating in Qingdao and Wuhan and
indemnify the Group against any losses arising from
the above defective property title issue and for any
moving cost/loss incurred, if, for any reason, the
respective subsidiaries were not able to continue to
use the buildings before the related acquisition and
registration procedures have been completed. The
aggregate net book value of the Group’s buildings
indemnified by Haier Corp as at 31 December 2007
amounted to approximately HK$169,851,000 (2006:
HK$175,588,000).

In the opinion of the directors, the Group is entitled
to lawfully and validly occupy and use the buildings
for its daily operations, notwithstanding the fact that
the related building ownership certificates have not
yet been obtained.

RZEBEZLFE+-A=+—H REEHR
BR T R B 4 5 267,009,000 /8 T (ZZEZ X
% 1 219,008,000 ) 2 & T 125 I #& LA
AABEHEBHBRARZARELTZEHE
FERE

R-BEZERF_A-_+THAR-ZEZERFhH
B=+H SBE£EATI[EAQSIMEHBRE
Ao B BREEARREE  MENE
AR NEF IEEELEERANERELRE
FRRAIEESAEFLEEK  ASHEE
EARGEAEEREEMEEYE Uk
REANTREERRELECETHEAR
ABERE R > WHEREBRE LRy
B RERZE 2B R AR TR ZE M
BRA/BR RZEZELtFE+_A=+—
H SREEQAGBEAEBZETFTARE
TFEHN5169,851,0008 T(=ZZF T~ F .
175,588,000587T) °

EERE  BENANGEHELERR
WA AR R R M AR
BUEAT BB EE -
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17. Prepaid Land Premiums 17. AT LR
Group REE
2007 2006
—EBLHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZERHEE 76,926 36,668
Additions NE - 40,218
Recognised during the year FRER (2,324) (1,427)
Exchange realignment FE 5 FE 2 5,248 1,467
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+t-BA=+—HZEAE 79,850 76,926
Current portion included in STATERRIE » RERHAFEU
prepayments, deposits and other BRAZREZD
receivables (2,105) (1,265)
Non-current portion FEmBE D 77,745 75,661

All leasehold land of the Group is under medium term
leases and is situated in Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2007, certain parcels of the
Group’s land with an aggregate unamortised
prepaid land premium amount of approximately
HK$52,215,000 (2006: HK$56,210,000) did not have
land use right certificates registered under the names
of the respective subsidiaries of the Company,
of which approximately HK$14,995,000 (2006:
HK$10,516,000) was indemnified by Haier Corp as
at 31 December 2007. Details of the undertakings
granted by Haier Corp to the Company in relation to
such title issue are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

AEEZHES T 9RhHBHNFE - B
ALPA B ARE o

NR-BELFE+ZHA=1—H  AEEXRE
SHTE(S L FRABEEA 5 52,215,000 T (=
TEZREF :56,210,000587T) 2% Tig L ib
WA AR EHENB AR ZERERLZ
T E AR BEEEARER=-ZZt
F+-A=+—HBRHEF% 14,995,000 %
T(=ZZZNF :10,516,00058 7t) EH A
B - BREEARRANARNEEAEREZ
B 1 ) AR A B E HARGGE 2 SRR B S 3R
KMTFE16 o
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18. Intangible Assets

18. B EE

Group REE
Patents and
licences
B RS
HK$°000
FET
31 December 2007 —ZEZ+tF+=-H=1+—H
At 1 January 2007: R-ZEZEtF—HA—H:
Cost AR 2,428
Accumulated amortisation E5E (694)
Net carrying amount BREDEE 1,734
Cost at 1 January 2007, net of accumulated RIBEZ+LF—F—H2ZRAE K
amortisation E g 5] 1,734
Amortisation provided during the year FRBERE (355)
Exchange realignment [ A 7% 105
Cost at 31 December 2007, net of accumulated RZBEE+LF+ZB=1T—H2ZHAK
amortisation E 1R E 55 1,484
At 31 December 2007: R-EELtFE+-A=+—8:
Cost R 2,596
Accumulated amortisation S (1,112)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,484
31 December 2006 —EERF+-A=+—H
At 1 January 2006: R-ZZEEXRFE—-—HA—H:
Cost %N 8,312
Accumulated amortisation TN (2,874)
Net carrying amount BRENFE 5,438
Cost at 1 January 2006, net of accumulated REBEARF—F—HZEA BBk
amortisation EGg: 5 5,438
Amortisation provided during the year FRBHEERE (639)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) HE M B QR (A7t 34) (8,138)
Exchange realignment [ A 7% 73
Cost at 31 December 2006, net of accumulated REBEERNF+ZA=T—H2ZHA
amortisation [EEillCE=5e: 5 1,734
At 31 December 2006: R=BEARF+=A=+—H:
Cost B 2,428
Accumulated amortisation E=Gg: £ (694)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 1,734
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19. Interests in Subsidiaries 19. B ARRESR

Company AAF]
2007 2006
—EBLF —EERE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Unlisted investments, at cost FEMRE » TR 1,982,417 1,982,417
Due from subsidiaries FEUS B B A B 78 163,575 503
2,145,992 1,982,920

Impairment for unlisted investments 3 EHR&E BIE (A1:E)

(note) (2,356) -
2,143,636 1,982,920

Note: An impairment was recognised for certain unlisted
investments with a carrying amount of HK$2,356,000
because the relevant subsidiaries had suffered losses
for years.

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included
in the Company’s non-current assets and non-current
liabilities of HK$163,575,000 (2006: HK$503,000) and
HK$81,060,000 (2006: HK$84,789,000), respectively,
are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of these
amounts due from and to subsidiaries approximate to
their fair values.

A . HAREEMBARRZEFERERE
B MEFARME(E2,356,0008 T 25
FHEHREWRRME -

FARATERBEERFRBEBZIE
W & FE 15 [T B 2 B 5k 18 4 5l 163,575,000
B (= & Z X F:503,0008 Tt ) K
81,060,000 Tt (==& /< : 84,789,000
BT)AEERF RERVEBEEERD -
ZERW R EMAHE A RRIEZREEEE
AFEEE ©
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19. KD B (&)
FERBATZERMT :

19. Interests in Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as

follows:
Percentage of
Place of Nominal value equity directly
registration and of registered attributable to Principal
Name operations capital the Company activities
KAREE
£ B ES T EAREE P RER DL TEXH
Direct  Indirect
B Bk
Qingdao Haier Washing Machine PRC/ RMB150,000,000 - 93.44 Manufacture and sale of

Co., Ltd. *

Mainland China A &#150,000,0007¢

washing machines

EEBRARKERAR" HE /R AR FEREERRE
Foshan Shunde Haier Electric PRC/ RMB48,000,000 — 60 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. * Mainland China ~ AE#48,000,0007T washing machines

fBILmIEESEERERAT" HE R AR EERHEERTH
Hefei Haier Washing Machine Co., PRC/ RMB12,000,000 - 98.69 Manufacture and sale of
Ltd. * Mainland China ~ AK¥12,000,0007t washing machines
BIEEREARKERAR" FE R AR EERBERTH
Qingdao Jiaonan Haier Washing PRC/ RMB10,000,000 - 94.49 Manufacture and sale of
Machine Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China  AK#10,000,0007t washing machines
EEBRmBEARKARL R FE R AR EERBERTH
Chongging Haier Washing Machine PRC/ RMB25,000,000 25 74.02 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. * Mainland China  AK#25,000,0007¢ washing machines
EESHARKARLE" e, B KR EEREERRH
Foshan Shunde Haier Intelligent PRC/ RMB34,200,000 25 74.02 Manufacture and sale
Electronic Co., Ltd. * Mainland China  AE#34,200,0007¢ of accessories for
HLTIEESREHETARA R B KR electrical appliances
SERHESHEM
Qingdao Haier Electronics Sales Co., PRC/ RMB5,000,000 50 30 Sale of washing
Ltd. * Mainland China  AK#5,000,0007T machines and water
EEBHEREEERAR" ] REARE heaters

HERTHR KR
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19. Interests in Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Place of

registration and

Name operations
£ MR E R
Haier Indesit (Qingdao) Washing PRC/
Machine Co., Ltd. *** Mainland China
BRBEE(FB)ARERRAR HEREARE
Haier Indesit (Qingdao) Electrical PRC/
Appliance Co., Ltd. *** Mainland China
BREEEE(FR)ERARAT ™ e REAME
Qingdao Economy and Technology PRC/
Development Zone Haier Water Mainland China
Heater Co., Ltd. *** HE/EIARE
BEERERMEEBERAKSE
BRAR ™
Wuhan Haier Water Heater PRC/
Co., Ltd. *** Mainland China
REBAAKEERAT ™ HE B AR
Chongging Haier Water Heater PRC/
Co., Ltd. ** Mainland China
ERSEAKEERAE RE/ R RRE

*k

law.

under PRC law.

19. B A A== (&)

Nominal value
of registered
capital

EMEXEE

USD24,000,000
24,000,000% T

USD12,000,000
12,000,000% 7T

RMB120,000,000

AK#120,000,0007

RMB50,000,000

AE50,000,0007

RMB10,000,000
AR®%10,000,0007

Registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture
enterprise under PRC law.

Registered as a limited liability company under PRC

Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the

Company which, in the opinion of the directors,

principally affected the results for the year or formed

a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.

To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

Percentage of
equity directly

attributable to
the Company
ARFEE
EERETA T
Direct Indirect
=23 B
- 100
- 100
— 100
- 100
- 100

Principal
activities

FREHR

Manufacture and sale
of washing machines

EERBERAH

Manufacture and sale
of washing machines

EERBERH

Manufacture and sale
of water heaters

LEREERKR

Manufacture and sale
of water heaters

EEREERKE

Manufacture and sale
of water heaters

EERBERKE

* REPEDEREMBTIINRDEE QT -

o REPEEEEMABREEAF -

o RBPBEUAEEMANEREERSE -

ERFAVZARTAMBRANESRAREER
FERKEAFE 2 RANARIEEEE

FEIBNIZHMBLR - EERA

=5l

Htt B2 RBEEHARBRIR °
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20. Long Term Prepayments 20. REIFBRMNFIA
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In 2005, Haier Group sponsored the Organising
Committee for the Games of the XXIX Olympiad
(“OCG”) in connection with the Games of the
XXIX Olympiad to be hosted in Beijing in 2008
(the “Games”). The sponsorship fee amounting
to RMB220 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$216 million) was shared as to RMB203 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$199 million) by
certain subsidiaries of Haier Group (excluding
those subsidiaries of the Group) and RMB17 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$17 million) by
one of the subsidiaries of the Company. Under the
sponsorship agreement, Haier Group and/or its
affiliates are permitted to use the official logo of the
Games for its product promotion purposes from 8
August 2005 to 31 December 2008 (the “Sponsorship
Period”).

The sponsorship fee is amortised over the
Sponsorship Period on the straight-line basis.

Accordingly, a relevant portion of the sponsorship
fee paid by the subsidiary of the Company amounting
to approximately HK$5 million has been classified as
prepayments, deposits and other receivables under
current assets.

R-ZEZEF BREEERSER=-ZFEN
FHELRIPZEOERMTREHS
(REE NEHFEOERMTREDHS
HBZEE(REE]) - BHEEZEARY
220,000,000 7t (4 2 7 #216,000,000 &
7t) » H e A R % 2083,000,000 7t (18 & R
#1199,000,000%8 T ) BB EE 2 & TH
BAR(REBZMEBABKRMN 2K mMA
S % 17,000,000 7t (18 & 1 #917,000,000
Bt AR SPVEEZ —RMBATSD
EoREBHHE SHEER REBK
BALTR-ZZRFENANBEZE=ZZENE
T A=+—AHBE(EHEDEES
ARESSHIFEREE -

ERNBENEHNEUEREH#E -

Hit » NARMEB A TS ZEE 28k
#B9# 5,000,000 8B TE D EARBEEE
T2HENFIE - Re Rk HAEUERTR -

Group REE
2007 2006
—EBLHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount at end of year FRZIREE 5,529 10,338
Current portion included in FFATBNRIE - RERHAM
prepayments, deposits and other FEWEBRFR Z R ENZB D
receivables (5,529) (5,169)
Non-current portion FEmBI D - 5,169
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21. Inventories 21. F&

Group REE
2007 2006
—EEtLF —EEREF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FETT
Raw materials R 34,399 15,907
Work in progress EHM 556 11,668
Finished goods SUR% 623,579 180,495
658,534 208,070

TR LEFR

FREBBRAR

=
)
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22. Trade and Bills Receivables

The Group normally allows an average credit period
of 90 days to its trade customers. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at
the balance sheet date, based on the invoice date
and net of provisions, and the balance of the bills
receivable are as follows:

22.

BREZRRREE

FEBE-RETHESZEFFH0HZE
B - AREHIHEREERURTER
BEEZ MeREEES TR BHA
B o EWE ZRARIGTEFIE -

RER B EWE Z R (S HREE) 2 IRk
BEFANIMREBRZE ZEHNT

Group AEE
2007 2006
—EEtHF —EERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Trade receivables: FEUE 5 BRFX -

Within 1 month 1B B A 404,318 334,656
1 to 2 months 122188 64,244 120,429
2 to 3 months 2Z31@A 40,950 29,295
Over 3 months BB 3{EA 54,174 21,267
563,686 505,647
Bills receivable EWEE 783,340 1,113,761

1,347,026 1,619,408
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22. Trade and Bills Receivables (Cont’d) 22. EWESRAKRERE(#E)

An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables
that are not considered to be impaired is as follows:

WERRBREZERE SRR RE ZRED
AT

Group AEE
2007 2006
—EELEF —EEREF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired REE R RRE 1,292,852 1,598,141
Less than 1 year past due BHDR F 54,174 21,267
1,347,026 1,619,408

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables
are amounts due from Haier Affiliates amounting to
HK$219,957,000 (2006: HK$479,940,000), which are
repayable on similar credit terms to those offered to
the major customers of the Group. Further details of
the sales to these related parties are set out in note
15 to the financial statements.

ARIBER 2 AR R AEL iz W R TR BRI A 3 £ K
MECEFRE -

EEMERBEZERRIAES ERAEE
TRCHERFZBUEFERE - REBEL
B ARRAESRARBANZEERELR
ERE  ARAFEERAUBERED  M&
ZEBNARIAR A ZHUWE o 25K 6 I HE 3
ZESEBREAEMNEARIHEBEEREA -

AEEZEGEZERAREZECERGER
BB A L IEH219,957,00008 T(ZEF
JNEE 1 479,940,00058 7T) © ZFE AR E
FTEHEFLETAREEEZEEKRARE
2o FENZEEEATRE EMFES
REFEERRMIEE15 ©
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23. Prepayments, Deposits and Other 23. ANNE - RERAMBEWERR
Receivables
Group Company
REE b N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF —EERF —EELEF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Prepayments FETFRIE 51,069 64,298 695 42
Deposits ®we 304 304 304 304
Other receivables H A FE UK BR X 126,882 36,862 - —
178,255 101,464 999 346

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are amounts due from Haier
Affiliates amounting to HK$65,942,000 (2006:
HK$87,008,000), which are unsecured, interest-free
and are repayable on demand. The carrying amounts
of the prepayments, deposits and other receivables
approximate to their fair values.

T EEMECHPRTMIE o LI
B 2 B 5 & B SO B R AC 8k 2 TR IR

RREE -

AEBZEMNFE - e R EMEWRRRE
IEEWEEEE A - T8 A 65,942,000 8

TT(ZZE/XE : 87,008,00058 JT) ° sZ K

EAEEE RS RRBAEE - BAX
H - BERHMRURARZ REEEAL QT

EAEE -
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24. Cash and Cash Equivalents RekFALEHEEH
Group Company
AEE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEF —EBRE —EEF —EZRE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FAET FET
Cash and bank balance IR& NIRI1T4RR 470,754 350,685 18,731 17,904
Time deposits EHER 124,672 276,117 124,672 48,117
Cash and cash HeERREEE
equivalents 1HE 595,426 626,802 143,403 66,021

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$452,041,000 (2006: HK$560,760,000). The
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirement of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
or financial institutions with no recent history of
default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents approximate to their fair values.

Included in the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposits of approximately HK$367,853,000
(2006: HK$479,163,000) placed with Haier Finance, a
financial institution approved by the People’s Bank of
China. The interest rate on these deposits was 0.72%
per annum. Further details of the interest income
attributable to the deposits placed with Haier Finance
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

REER AEEUARBTARYE D
NEZESERRTERUREHER
#452,041,000/8 (= & & R F:
560,760,000 7T) - AR TEBHRLR
REMEY  BREDEKREZ(IESH
ERREE  EERNEEERE) &%
B R EAER A ETINEEL Z2RITHEAR
BHBAHMEY o

FRI[-ITZEEREE B RITERNREF
B RHMMAL - B ERFRRTAEER
ZHBREFRMIA/NF-—HE=EAZ
TREFFE - RAEE S 8 E H 17 R R BRER
FE o |ITEFFRRAEBITHIRLEZ
FERFRITRNESHEE -BRERRESEE
HE ZREERE A FEMRS -

AEEZREERASEEBABREFEHNE
B 2 177 # 367,853,000 8 T (=B F
N 479,163,000 T) o B MK AH
Bl ARIRITRR Z I HEHAE - ZEFRIRE
FMZE0.72 EFHE - BRETFHAERT K2
FERZFE WA B MBI M RR M T
15 ©
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25. Trade and Bills Payables
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the
balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, and
the balance of the bills payable are as follows:

25. BNEBRARRE

RESHERNEZRRZERREZRZAED
MRENREZEHOT ¢

Group REE
2007 2006
—BEtHF —EERE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET

Trade payables: FEUN E 5 BRFX ¢

Within 1 month 1B B A 441,094 630,009
1 to 2 months 122188 296,903 108,895
2 to 3 months 2Z31@A 64,196 3,864
Over 3 months BB 3{EA 229,848 25,225
1,032,041 767,993
Bills payable FEUN =4 - 442,020
1,032,041 1,210,013

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on credit terms ranging from 30 to
90 days.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills payables
are amounts due to Haier Affiliates amounting to
HK$1,008,252,000 (2006: HK$749,449,000), which
are repayable on similar credit terms to those offered
by other similar suppliers of the Group. Further
details of the purchases from these related parties
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

ENEZRAANTFE » X —RIZNF30
E90RAZEEHEE -

AEEBZEMNESZERREBEBDERMSSHE
BB A + 718 51,008,252,000/8 T(==
TN 1 749,449,000/ L) - ZRIEEAR
SEHEAMMERS TAKREES 2 EERKE
2 o BRANZEREA THE 2 HsF B
R SR RMTE15 o
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26. Other Payables and Accruals 26. HttESERRRETTEE
Group Company
AEE KATE
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELF —EERE —EELF —EERE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FEr
Other payables H b FE{TER X 575,662 625,512 192,379 168,695
Accruals EtEE 438,240 236,054 9,980 17,650
1,013,902 861,566 202,359 186,345

Included in the Group’s other payables and accruals
are amounts due to Haier Affiliates and directors of
the Company and certain subsidiaries amounting
to HK$374,720,000 and HK$16,936,000 (2006:
HK$261,232,000 and Nil), respectively. These
amounts are unsecured, interest-free and are
repayable on demand, except for a payable amount
due to Haier Electrical Appliances Third Holdings
(BVI) Limited, a subsidiary of Haier Group, of
HK$168,695,000 at 31 December 2006.

The payable amount due to Haier Electrical
Appliances Third Holdings (BVI) Limited represented
the deferred consideration relating to the Asset
Transfer. It was originally due to be repayable at
31 December 2007 and bore interest at 4% per
annum but the due date of this payable amount,
together with its corresponding accrued interest of
HK$6,748,000, aggregating HK$175,443,000 was
extended one year to 31 December 2008 and the
entire payable amount of HK$175,443,000 at 31
December 2007 has become non-interest-bearing
since 31 December 2007 pursuant to an agreement
entered into between Haier Electrical Appliances
Third Holdings (BVI) Limited and the Company on 31
December 2007.

rEBzHEHMEMERRESEBEERE
ESEEEBALTRAQIATARSE TH
B 7 E = MIE D Bl £374,720,000%
Jt % 16,936,000/ (= & & K F :
261,232,000 8 TR &) - ZERELHE
KA REDNRBAEE HER=-FZTX
Ft+-A=+-HENERERE=ZER
BVNERATCEHERZHE A T)KE
168,695,000 8 TR I ©

BN SHRERE=ERBV)ERATAR/E
BEEEECELENE -ZHEBEER=-ZZ
+tF+-A=+—REHEELIRFREL
Bt E - MZEAFRIEZ 2R EREAE
FEST 7 26,748,000 % Jt & £ 175,443,000
BrTEEEH—FE-_FEETNEFE+ A
=+t—H MRBEEEERFE=1ZRK (BVI)
ERAAEAQATAR-_ZZELE+-A
=t+—BFluzHE  R-ZEZ=LF+_-A
=t+—HZE2EEIFIE175,443,0008 T
EE=EEtLtF+_A=+—HBRATET

H o
N
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27. Interest-bearing Borrowings

27. GTEEE

Group IRE
2007 2006
“EELE “EERE
Effective
Interest Year of Effective Year of
rate maturity interest rate maturity
L ES 5|5 BRFI= )
% HK$’000 % HK$°000
FET FHET
Current a
Convertible notes RREE
(note 28) (K 28) 475 2008 169,344 - - -
Other loans Hit & 6.57 2008 62,032 6.12 2007 58,000
231,376 58,000
Non-current ¥7E
Convertible notes EE S
(note 28) (Hiz£28) - - - 4.75 2008 161,665
Other loans HnEH 6.75-7.20  2009-2011 152,941 6.48  2009-2011 78,800
152,941 240,465
384,317 298,465
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27.

Interest-bearing Borrowings (Cont’d) STEEE#E)
Company AAT
2007 2006
“RELF “ZERE
Effective
Interest Year of Effective Year of
rate maturity interest rate maturity
BRA= Eb ERFI= 25
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
FE FET
Current E
Convertible notes ABRREE
(note 28) (Hiz£28) 4.75 2008 169,344 - - -
Non-current i E
Convertible notes RREE
(note 28) (fiz£28) - - - 4.75 2008 161,665
169,344 161,665
Group Company
A% EINS
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEF —EERE —EELF —EZRE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FéET FET TET T
Borrowings repayable:  ZER LT RHEA
BEZREE
Within one year or on —FRIREA
demand 231,376 58,000 169,344 —
In the second year EF_F 26,524 161,665 — 161,665
In the third to fifth E=FFRHEF
years, inclusive (BiFaR
MF) 126,417 78,800 - =
384,317 298,465 169,344 161,665

T LEFR
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27.

28.

Interest-bearing Borrowings (Cont’d)

All interest-bearing borrowings are unsecured.
The other loans represented loans borrowed from
Haier Finance, which are guaranteed by Haier Corp,
bear interest at rates ranging from 6.57% to 7.20%
per annum and are repayable within one year,
except for borrowings of HK$152,941,000 (2006:
HK$78,800,000) which are repayable between 2009
and 2011. Further details of the interest expenses
attributable to the loans borrowed from Haier Finance
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

Except for the convertible notes, all borrowings of
the Group bear interest at floating interest rates. The
Group’s other loans are denominated in RMB and
the convertible notes are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other
borrowings approximate to their fair values.

Convertible Notes

On 28 January 2005, the Company issued convertible
notes with an aggregate principal amount of HK$260
million to a subsidiary of Haier Group, Qingdao
Haier Group Holdings (BVI) Ltd. The convertible
notes have a three-year term and are non-interest-
bearing. Each note is convertible at any time prior
to the fifth business day before 27 January 2008, at
the noteholder’s option, into the Company’s ordinary
shares at a conversion price of HK$0.18 per share
(adjusted to HK$1.8 per share as a result of the share
consolidation which became effective from 8 March
2007). When the notes were issued, the prevailing
market interest rate for similar notes without the
conversion option was higher than the interest rate at
which the notes were issued.

27.

28.

STEEE )

BT EEEYAREKR HMWERER
BHEMEEATHSHEBAGERZE
Ko BERMENF6.57%E7.20% ETE
RER—FREZ HBER-ZZTNFE-
T——FEEZEE152,941,0008 (=
ZTEZNF 178,800,000 7T) BRI o [EIEFE
BEEABRZRE S HE NIRRT
15 ©

BRI REI - AEBERARBEEG VTS
MRFE - FEEEMERUAREIIE -
T AT A R B B LUB TTHIME -

REBAEMEE 2 REERE A FERS -

AR EE
RZZEZEHEF—A=-+/\HBH  RQAGREE
HEEZHEBELATSEESREEEZERBVI)
BRATETARESEES 260,000,000 &
TRZABRBREE - IRREE2FHAE=
F o AR - EEBFEATR-_ZZENEF
— A=+t HAFEREEEBAMERUER
0.18BL(ER=—FZLtFE=ZANBERZ
BROSHMAZRZSR1.88BL) 2BRE
BEEBRBARATNERAR - ERTRE
% WERBRKEZEEREE TSR ER
ERBTERZFERAS o
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28. Convertible Notes (Cont’d) 28. AIARERE (F)
The fair value of the liability component of the ARREBEZ2EER S AFEREITHE
convertible notes was determined at the issuance ZRBEEXK(LEBRRE) 2ERFMSH =X

date, using the prevailing market interest rate for
similar debt without a conversion option of 4.75%
and is carried as a long term liability. The remaining
portion was allocated to the conversion option
that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity. At the issuance date, the liability and equity
components of the convertible notes were split as to
HK$226,210,000 and HK$33,790,000, respectively.

During the year, there were no conversions of
convertible notes into ordinary shares of the
Company. Accordingly, the equity component
of the convertible notes remained unchanged
during the year and the liability component of the
convertible notes was increased by the amount of
corresponding finance costs of HK$7,679,000 (2006:
HK$7,459,000) during the year. At 31 December 2007,
the outstanding aggregate principal amount of the
convertible notes was HK$170 million (2006: HK$170
million).

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 18 January
2008, the outstanding aggregate principal amount
of the convertible notes of HK$170 million were
fully converted, resulting in the issue of 94,444,444
additional ordinary shares of the Company.
Accordingly, there are additions of share capital
and share premium of approximately HK$9 million
and HK$183 million, respectively, and a reduction
in the equity component of the convertible notes of
approximately HK$22 million.

(475 E)EE > WARHABIIER - ®&k
WoRESEMEERRERBEIARZRR
B -RETHH BEoFZ2URREEZ
BERERZID D HA 226,210,000 B T K
33,790,000 7T °

FR WEIRBREEZLBARAAESE
Bz o Bt > AR EE 2 ERE D RERR
BAg mMABREEZE8EHRAERNE
B INAEFERLE AL 287,679,000/ 8 T(=Z 2 F
NE 17,459,000 B )2 & KRBT
tE+ZA=1+—H  HRAZIBZARRE
JERE #5845 170,000,0008 T (ZBEE XN
% :170,000,000787T) °

NEERZ  RZZEZENE—A+N\B &
KRE AR S 4%E 170,000,000 578 7T 2 AT AR
REC T ER ) BEHE1T4,444,444 %
RABEEIZLBER - Bt » BAR R EE
% Bl #2 Hn#7 9,000,000 78 7t & 183,000,000
B MARKREBZEZIS BRI Y
22,000,000 7T °
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28. Convertible Notes (Cont’d)

28. MAREE &)

Group and Company RNEBRAAT
Liability component
=Lt
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kz FET FET
At 1 January K—A—H 161,665 211,528
Interest expenses ME S H 7 7,679 7,459
Conversion of convertible notes  RBARKRERE - (57,322)
At 31 December R+=ZB=+—H 169,344 161,665
29. Provisions 29, #&1&
Group AEH
Product warranties and
installation
ERRERTE
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January n—HB—H 171,165 108,459
Additional provision B OMNE AR 336,748 362,946
Amounts utilised during the year FREEALEE (330,521) (304,578)
Exchange realignment BE 5 FR 2 12,167 4,338
At 31 December WN+=—A=+—8H 189,559 171,165
Portion classified as current liabilities FI{EREIEE 25 (63,898) (61,172)
Non-current portion JERENEL D 125,661 109,993

The Group provides installation services and
warranties of one to three years to its customers on
washing machines and water heaters, under which
faulty products are repaired or replaced. The amount
of the provision for the warranties is estimated based
on sales volumes and past experience of the level of
installation services rendered, repairs and returns.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis
and revised where appropriate.

rEBREFRBRZEBRBRAN —E=F
ZARHEREKEFRE  BBAEZERTE
HERNER - REBBESHRIREER IR
REZRRE - EERBRELSRMET o 5T
BEEFER - WREERFEHER -
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30. Deferred Tax 30.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
(mainly representing accruals and provisions) during
the year are as follows:

IERE R IH
TR BEHREEREG(ERREE
MARBE)ZEBNT -

Group rEH
Deferred tax assets
EERIEEE
2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kiat FETT FET
At 1 January n—B—H 34,681 30,824
Deferred tax credited to the FREWZER AR
income statement during the  ZiEZEFIE
year 10 12,245 2,718
Exchange realignment & 5 A 2,580 1,139
At 31 December R+=-—B=+—H 49,506 34,681
Deferred tax liabilities
EEFIEEE
2007 2006
—EZLF —ETRF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kz FET FET
At 1 January R—A—H 7,465 —
Deferred tax charged/(credited) F Rz RN (AR)
to the income statement ZIEFERL IR
during the year 10 (7,656) 7,465
Exchange realignment E 5 A 191 —
At 31 December R+=—B=+—H - 7,465

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$36,098,000 (2006: HK$34,523,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
the Company and subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the tax losses can be utilised.

AEBREBELAZCHEERASR
36,098,000 B T (=ZZFE /N5 : 34,523,000
B AIHERMEEZSELEFRZA
A A RERBFGEF - ARNELERAEERA
BRZEBZADFARMBLR - B ES
ZEBBRRABLEREEE  MARFAFR
REVRERTHARESE ZBERER
A e
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30. Deferred Tax (Cont’d)

31.

At 31 December 2007, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2006: Nil) for
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries as the
Group has no liability to additional tax should such
amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

30. IEFEFIIE (&)

R-ZZLF+=-A=+—0  FEEHE
AESZERBELFINBZEE - Bt
VEERAE TAEENELARRETREFZ
ENREZEARERELEREEE(=F
BRE &)

AR A E R R 2 RSB M AP
BHRER -

Issued Equity 31. BE&{TESR
Group REHE

Issued equity
BT
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January 2006 RZZZRFE—H—H 1,094,159
Conversion of convertible notes HBTIRRERE 65,509
Exercise of share options TIERE AR 53,292
At 31 December 2006 and beginning of year R=ZEEARFE+=ZA=+—HBREA 1,212,960
Exercise of share options TIERE AR RE 35,250
At 31 December 2007 R-ZEZELtF+-A=+—H 1,248,210

Due to the use of the reverse acquisition basis
of accounting, the amount of issued equity,
which includes share capital, share premium and
contributed surplus in the consolidated balance
sheet, represents the amount of issued equity of
legal subsidiaries acquired by the Company on 28
January 2005 and the amount of issued equity of
Haier Electrical Appliances Fourth Holdings (BVI)
Limited, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and its then subsidiaries at 31 December
2006 plus equity changes of the Company resulting
from the exercise of share options and conversion of
convertible notes after the reverse acquisition. The
equity structure (i.e., the number and type of shares)
reflects the equity structure of the legal parent, Haier
Electronics Group Co., Ltd.

AREAZERREEHE  HERTEEZ
CH(BEREEEABRZBAN  BHE
BERBABRR)VERAAR-_ZZHE—A
“tHtN\BFRBEEAEMNB AR ZEBITHE
DEERAATRZEETEWNBATIEHEE
BEEREMEZERBVYVERARREERHE A
AR=ZZEERE+_A=+—HAZBEBTHE
wHEE o MEFEBEERDRRITERR
ERGBIBRBEREENEE 2 EREE - &
AEBAROEE RER) RREAER AT
EHEREEERAFZERERE -
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31. Issued Equity (Cont’d) 31. BE&ITERR @)
Company AAF]
2007 2006
—EEtLHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#ET FET
Authorised: JEIE ¢
30,000,000,000 (2006: 30,000,000,000) 30,000,000,000 f%
shares of HK$0.1 each ZEERE
30,000,000,000 %) =%
HE0.1 BT 2R H 3,000,000 3,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITREHRE :
1,859,323,461 (2006: 18,365,734,612)  1,859,323,461/%
shares of HK$0.1 each (ZEZREFE:
18,365,734,612[%) Bk
HE{E0.1B T2 i 185,932 1,836,573

T LEFR

REBBRAT

=
)
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31.

Issued Equity (Cont’d)
A summary of the transactions during the year

31. BR1TEZ#E)
RERSRADFACBITRAZ RSB

involving the Company’s issued share capital is as T s
follows:
Number of Issued Share
shares in share premium
issue capital account Total
ERTROHE ERTRAE PR 47323 1 BR st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET T
At 1 January 2006 R=-ZEXREF
—H—H 16,670,734,612 1,667,073 579,264 2,246,337
Issue of shares BT 1,000,000,000 100,000 140,000 240,000
Conversion of HBRAAREE
convertible notes 350,000,000 35,000 30,509 65,509
Exercise of share TEBRRE
options (note i) (Brati) 345,000,000 34,500 18,792 53,292
At 31 December 2006 RIEZTREF
and beginning of year +=A
=+—BRK
F4 18,365,734,612 1,836,573 768,565 2,605,138
Exercise of share R & BFAT
options before share TR
consolidation (note i) (Bitati) 55,000,000 5,500 2,840 8,340
Capital reduction (note ii) BRI,
(Ktatii) — (1,657,866) — (1,657,866)
Share consolidation &5 & 65
(note ii) (Bratii) (16,578,661,151) — — -
Exercise of share RIRBEBHE
options after share TR
consolidation (note i) (Btai) 17,250,000 1,725 25,185 26,910
At 31 December 2007 A—EELF
+=A
=r=I[g 1,859,323,461 185,932 796,590 982,522
Notes: =3

(i) Details of the Company’s share option scheme and
the share options issued under the scheme are
included in note 32 to the financial statements.

(i) Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special
general meeting of the Company held on 7 March
2007, the Company reduced the nominal value of
each of its issued shares from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01
by the cancellation of paid-up capital of HK$0.09 on
each of its issued shares (the “Capital Reduction”).
Immediately following the Capital Reduction, every 10
issued shares of the Company of HK$0.01 resulting
from the Capital Reduction were consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.1 each (the “Share
Consolidation”). The Capital Reduction and Share
Consolidation became effective from 8 March 2007.

(i) AARBRESIRREFTIRTZER
2 RHR B IRRMFES2 o

(i) WREEAATIR-ZZLEFE=ALBETZ
BRESHNAELBEBZERRER > AL
AEBFHEESROCBITROZCHER
70.09% T HESBRERTROZEE
F0.178TEIRZE 0.01 8 7T ([ BRASER 1) »
SR RRANHIR & - AN D B E IR A E R m A
£ 2B 10REREEO0.01 BT ZERITR
BEfE—REREMEIBTZEMR
BTRBEH]) - RABRERAEHE
H-EELFE=F/\ABER -
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32.

Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the operations
of the Group. Eligible participants of the Share
Option Scheme include any employee, executive
or officer of the Group (including executive and
non-executive directors of the Company) and any
supplier, consultant, agent, adviser, shareholder,
customer, partner, business associate who, in the
sole discretion of the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”), has contributed to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme became effective
on 28 February 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is such number of shares, when aggregated
with shares subject to any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company, must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The
maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise
of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this 1%
limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by
the Company (and if required, the holding company)
and the shareholders’ approval of the Company (and
if required, the approval of the shareholders of the
holding company) at a general meeting.

32. BBIRAESTE

RRBEM—EBERESE(BRE
2 HENERBRRBESERSRE
REAEEXEBEHERM - BREFTEZEE
KSREVEAREZEMES - THRAR
FEEAS(BERARFAZATRIHTE
B) URAQFESE(ESS ) 28R
ERREAEEERER 2 EMHER - B
B REE - FHABRR > FF - BAR
EBHEA - BRESEH-"ZT-F_A

ZHNBREXN MRS TEHRIET I

HHZBBT10FRER -

RIBRBIRES B TR K 2 BRENS 2K
D REIN A D TR E b EE RERT BIPT S
ZROEE - FEBBRBRESERMNE
BAQBE#HITRAE10% - WEM+ =@
AHERN  AREBEBRESERAQFE
AHEmBRESERE 2BREBEST
£~ EEREARTEZBRE)ETEMT

LE&EERSRERTZHESROEE -

URHERARQRBEHITRD 1% BR - @
BEOBBZ1%REZBRE - AEALQF
(R(MBEFE)ERLA)ASETRER
ERBRRAEHREARARR(R(MEF
B)ERDBZBRR)HAE
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32. Share Option Scheme (Cont’d) 32. BBIRETTEI(E)
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their respective associates, are subject to
the approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company (and if required,
the independent non-executive directors of the
holding company), excluding the independent non-
executive director(s) of the Company and the holding
company who is/are the grantee(s) of the options. In
addition, any share option granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their respective
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of grant or with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the shares of the Company as at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, is subject to the issue of a circular by the
Company (and if required, the holding company) and
the shareholders’ approval of the Company (and if
required, the approval of the shareholders of the
holding company) in advance at a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1
in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the Board,
and commences on a specified date and ends on a
date which is not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the share options or the expiry date of the
Share Option Scheme, whichever is earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is
determinable by the Board, but may not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares of the Company.

BAARZESSARSTHRAERETERR
RHEESEZEABBEARBBERE =L
WBESAAB 2B IEHITES (RN
BEE)ERAAZEBIEHTES)AE
(BRBREARAZRDABTREZERATE
SNIEHITEERIN) o bhHh  MEM+=
EABREEAQT 2 EERREBILIFHNT
EEYHEER A ABHBEARE ZBRERR
Bl BREEERARATCHITRG
DA% HABEMRBERLEEBRATRMD Z
W EHE T &) #38 5,000,000 &t 0 Al
AR(R(MEFE)ZER AR )EE % 2
BRRABRRASHEREAATRER (R (B
EE)ERATZBRR)AE -

RHBRECEZTRNEZ A YL 28 A
RHAARASNRHAXNESH 1 BLRE
mooRHBREZTREIHESEETE
HiEEZ AR 2R BERERBEST
BBEtTFzARBRETIHHE (URE
ERE)RL -

BREZITEEHESSEE  EABER
TH=FB2H&S5%E : () AR2TARORBELE
B(XEARSB)EBRMIEARERMS
ZWHE; (VA2 ARORBEREEHR
AEERS B EBIAEARERMIIZF
HWHE & (i) ADERMZEE -
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32. Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Details of the movements of share options under

32.

fBRRERT 8l (#)

BRENER T ARBRESHRBRRA

BLEREZHEF -

i o AR I TR 2 B RE I

the Share Option Scheme during the year were as T s
follows:
2007
—ERLE
Price of the
Number of share options * Company’s shares (note 3)*
BhREHE" ADARGERHZ3)
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise  Immediately
as at Exercised Lapsed asat price of before the At exercise
Name or category of 1 January during during 31 December  Date of grant of Exercise period share exercise date of
participant $EELHAER 2007 the year the year 2007 share options of share options options* date options
RoRRLE il
-B-Rik t2R=t-B  ERE RhRE SRRRET RERE
fife FRRH Enfk HAGE HEAS fifeH RREMREE RAMA fiEnd
(note 1) (note 2)
Wiy (Witz)
HK$ HK$ HKS
AT AT A
Executive directors ~ #7E%
Wu Ke Song Rt 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - 19/11/2002 19/11/2003-18/11/2007 150 2.55 250
Chai Yong Sen (note 4) %k (Hit4) 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - 19/11/2002 19/11/2003-18/11/2007 1.50 2.55 250
Liang Hai Shan 281 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - 19/11/2002 19/11/2003-18/11/2007 150 2.55 250
Cui Shao Hua E)E 1,000,000 (1,000,000) - - 19/11/2002 19/11/2003-18/11/2007 150 2.55 250
4,000,000 (4,000,000) - -
Independent non-
executive directors  BUFHTES
Fung Hoi Wing, Henry
(note 5) ER% (1:25) 100,000 (100,000) - - 16/8/2002 16/8/2003-15/8/2007 1.56 253 251
Other participants O e
In aggregate Ait 22,650,000 (18,650,000) (4,000,000) - 16/8/2002 16/8/2003-15/8/2007 1.56 2.55 250
26,750,000  (22,750,000)  (4,000,000) -
G Adjusted to take into account the share consolidation * TEH FE LT AR & F

T LEFR
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32. Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

32. BRRETTEI(E)

2006 =
Price of the
Number of share options Company's shares (note 3)
RREUA ARARBER )
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise Immediately
asat Granted Exercised as at price of hefore the At exercise
1 January during the during 31 December  Date of grant of Exercise period share At grant date exercise date of
2006 year the year 2006  share options  of share options options of options date options
Nameor category SEZEZEIBE  H-B3iE R-EBRE
of participant -B-REF t2R=t-B  ERE BRE HERERY  BEEBRES HERE
fi ERRHE ik HAE  REAH fiiE BREEE A4 fERHA iR
(note 1) (note 2)
(1) Wi2)
HKS HKS HK$ HKS
AT AT AT AT
Executive directors #{7E%
19/11/2003-
Wu Ke Song LN 62,000,000 - (52,000,000) 10,000,000  19/11/2002 18/11/2007 0.150 - 0.241 0.239
Chai Yong Sen 19/11/2003-
(note 4) SXR (4 62,000,000 - (520000000 10,000,000 19/11/2002 18/11/2007 0150 - 0.240 0.241
19/11/2003-
Liang Hai Shan Al 60,000,000 - (50,000,000) 10,000,000 19/11/2002 18/11/2007 0.150 - 0.241 0.241
19/11/2003-
Cui Shao Hua £)z 60,000,000 - (50,000,000) 10,000,000 19/11/2002 18/11/2007 0.150 - 0.241 0.241
244,000,000 —(204,000,000) 40,000,000
Independent
non-executive
directors BUfuES
Lam Kin Kau, Mark 16/8/2003-
(note §) WER (i) 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - 16/8/2002 16/8/2007 0.156 - 0.259 0.248
Fung Hoi Wing, 16/8/2003—
Henry (note 5)  EE% (#i5) 2,000,000 - (1,000,000) 1,000,000  16/8/2002 16/8/2007 0.156 - 0.265 0.280
7,000,000 - (6,000,000) 1,000,000
Other employees  E4t/EE
23/1/2006-
In aggregate Ait = 5,000,000 (5,000,000) - 23/1/2006 22112011 0.2134 0.213 0.320 0.295
Other participants Eft58%
16/8/2003-
In aggregate ait 356,500,000 - (130,000,000 226,500,000 16/8/2002 16/8/2007 0.156 - 0.300 0.291
607,500,000 5000000 (345,000,000 267,500,000
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32. Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Notes:

1.

The vesting period of the share options is from the
date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment(s) in the case of rights or bonus share
issues, or other similar changes in the share capital
of the Company.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as
at the date of grant of the share options is the
Stock Exchange closing price on the trading day
immediately prior to the date of grant of the options.
The price of the Company’s shares disclosed
immediately before the exercise date of the share
options is the weighted average of the Stock
Exchange closing prices immediately before the dates
on which the options were exercised over all of the
exercises of options within the disclosure line.

Mr. Chai Yong Sen resigned as an executive of the
Company with effect from 15 February 2007.

Mr. Lam Kin Kau, Mark, and Mr. Fung Hoi Wing,
Henry, resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 21 June
2007.

The fair value of the share options granted in
prior year was HK$409,000, of which the Group
recognised a share option expense during the year
ended 31 December 2006.

33. Reserves

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
the movements therein for the current and
prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 58 of
the financial statements.

(i) Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and
regulations, certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to transfer a portion of their
profits to reserve funds. These funds
are non-distributable in the form of
cash dividends. For the purpose of
determining the appropriations to these
funds, the net profits of these subsidiaries
are determined in accordance with the
applicable financial rules and regulations
of the PRC.

32.

33.

B8 (#)
HisE -

1. BREZEBHAREBAHEZ/TEHRR
BB -

2. BREZTEETREREENRIBTAR
HARFRAHRE MR HE -

3. FREARARONANBREREERZE
% ARBREBRERHERNZRZAHE
B S Pl iz W (B o PR B8 AN 1 B IR0 B2 3%
BRETEERANZER  AEREEE
NEBTEMEBRETREERETHE
E H A B A2 IR T E o

4. REXKAENR-ZZ2LF-A+HAEH
EARDREES °

>

5. MEBREERBBRELENR-ZZLEFS
B-t+—-BEBREAARBYFITES

o

REFRHBREZ X FER409,000%
T AEBERBE-_ZEERE+ZA
=t-HIEFERAEIBRENS -

&

(@) F£H
AEERBAFEASEZHEBERE
RESEFE  BNTKHRKRESE
ZEAREREEEK

() REBBEPBEIEMRER  &N&
EE TR EERzZHEQRA
HEBIBNERERBES -
ZEESTAURERE 2K
DK EEEOZEFEEZDE
o SREERZHETERR
RERBEZEWEBAT 24
A o
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33. Reserves (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

Group (Cont’d)

(ii) The Group’s capital reduction reserve
arose from the reduction in the nominal
value of each of the issued shares of
the Company from HK$0.10 to HK$0.01
by the cancellation of paid-up capital of
HK$0.09 on each of the issued shares of
the Company effective from 8 March 2007.
The Group’s capital reserve originally
represented the difference between the
credit arising from the Capital Reduction
of HK$1,657,866,000 and the amount

33. s
(a)

(#&)

REE ()

i)y AEBzZBRAHRGEEE
BER-ZEZELtFE=ZANHBESB
HHESRERITROZEH
E R A&009E T BHER
BEITRMODZEAEHOIOE
7C Bl £0.0158 T o AN & B
ZBRARBERABERBRANESE
2 ¥ BR1,657,866,00058 T E2
ERNHEASBETGTER
1,196,370,000/8 T & B Z =

,-\-E- ®
transferred to eliminate the accumulated =
losses of the Group of HK$1,196,370,000
Company (b) A2F
Retained
Share Share profits/
premium  Contributed option (accumulated
account surplus reserve losses) Total
\ REEH/
R EER BABH  BRERE  (RHER) o
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
it AT TE7 FEx AT TET
RZZEERE
At 1 January 2006 —fA-A 579,264 190,870 - (1,250,311) (480,177)
Issue of shares BIRA 140,000 - - - 140,000
Equity-settled share option L\RALE
arrangements EREZH 32 - - 409 - 409
Conversion of convertible
notes RRITRREE 30,509 - - - 30,509
Exercise of share options 1T/ IERIE 18,792 = (409) = 18,383
Profit for the year ERRA - - - 48,698 48,698
REBEARE
+ZA=1-A
At 31 December 2006 and ~ K=BE+E
1 January 2007 —A-AH 768,565 190,870 - (1,201,613) (242,178)
Capital reduction Rl 31 - 1,657,866 - - 1,657,866
Transfer of contributed
surplus to offset against BB\ BERDUIL
accumulated losses ZHEE - (1,196,370 - 1,196,370 -
Exercises of share options  /T{E i MR#E 28,025 - = 28,025
Profit for the year ERRA - - - 188,537 183,537
R=2EtE
At 31 December 2007 +ZB=1+-H 796,590 652,366 - 178,294 1,627,250

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the excess of the fair value of the
shares of the subsidiaries acquired, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders in
certain circumstances.

KRB ZHABRBFIVBERELQT
R DA FEBREADRHIZSHERER
EMBTROMEZZRE - REAR
E—-NN\—FRQAEEER) - BA
BRUEETERTDIRTRER °
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34. Disposal of Subsidiaries

34. HEKMEBAT

2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt FET FET
Net assets disposed of: FIHECEEFE:
Property, plant and equipment M RENRE 16 - 370,042
Intangible assets BREE 18 - 3,138
Inventories FE - 171,527
Trade and bills receivables B E SRR R EE - 438,676
Prepayments, deposits and other AR RE R HAth
receivables FEUR BRFR - 105,047
Tax recoverable AR E BB - 94
Cash and cash equivalents BEFESEEEH - 38,534
Trade and bills payables EFESERAREE - (738,611)
Other payables Hi S BRA K
and accruals Estas - (54,862)
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE - (67,911)
- 265,674
Exchange fluctuation reserve
realised BEIR 2 JNE R Bt s - (13,342)
Expenses directly attributable to
the disposal of the discontinued  HED&R LXK
operation HERLZEX - 2,219
Gain on disposal of the discontinued HEB &1L L& K
operation 2 12 - 156,449
- 411,000
Satisfied by: ARSI R &4
Promissory note ENRE 12 - 411,000
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34. Disposal of Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries
is as follows:

34. LHEWBAT &)
FREHENBARAZRERRSSEERREF
EAMMT :

2007 2006
—EELEF —EEREF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Cash consideration RERE - —
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FrHERERIASLEIER - (38,534)
Net outflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the FEHENBATRZRERES

disposal of subsidiaries LEEAREFHE - (38,534)
35. Contingent Liabilities 35. WAREE

At the balance sheet date, neither the Group nor the
Company had any significant contingent liabilities.

36. Operating Lease Arrangements
The Group leases certain properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for the properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the
Company had total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases falling due as

REEH  AEERAQXFTGEFEMEALA
aE-

36. REHYZH
AEBRBLSLHENRHAALETYE - BE
ZYEBBNF—FE+E o

REER > AEBRAQRRENT I EEE
iz TREBUE 2 REHNBERRRRE LT
W

follows:
Group Company
AEE AAT]
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EFLFE ZBERF ZBTLF FERF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET T
Within one year —F R 16,288 7,436 998 998
In the second to fifth FEZHF (BREEEW
years, inclusive F) 5,024 5,111 249 1,247
21,312 12,547 1,247 2,245
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37. Commitments
In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 36 above, the Group had the
following commitments at the balance sheet date:

37. &L

BR £ TR aE 36 P s il AR & AR AV RS SD -

SERGEEEAUTEE :

Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Authorised, but not contracted for: EREERTY:
Property, plant and equipment M- BERRE - 169,298
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEMEES:{H
Property, plant and equipment M- BERRE 18,328 82,467
18,328 251,765

At the balance sheet date, the Company did not
have any significant commitments other than those
disclosed in note 36 above.

REER » ARAREXHEICTIKE

BN AT E ARIE -
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38. Financial Instruments by Category 38. eRITASE
The carrying amounts of loans and receivables and REER » AEBEzERREVGIER ZE
financial liabilities at amortised cost of the Group at ERAZEHEEZIRABNT

the balance sheet date are as follows:

Financial assets SHMEE
Loans and receivables
BRI ERIE
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade and bills receivables EWE SRR EE 1,347,026 1,619,408
Other receivables (notes 23) H {th FE WL BR X (M2 23) 126,882 36,862
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRBESZEEER 595,426 626,802
2,069,334 2,283,072
Financial liabilities cRAaE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
REBERAzeEAE
2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade and bills payables BB ZERERREE 1,032,041 1,210,013
Other payables (note 26) H{th A BR R (M2 26) 575,662 625,512
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE 214,973 136,800
Convertible notes AR EE 169,344 161,665

1,992,020 2,133,990
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38. Financial Instruments by category (Cont’d) 38. EMIED¥E#E)
The carrying amounts of loans and receivables and REEHR » AATERREVGRIER Z#
financial liabilities at amortised cost of the Company ERAZEHEEZIRABNT

at the balance sheet date are as follows:

Financial assets ERMEE
Loans and receivables
BRREWRIE
2007 2006
—EELF —EEREF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Due from subsidiaries (note 19) FEUWLHT B A RIFIE (A2t 19) 163,575 503
Cash and cash equivalents HERBREeEEER 143,403 66,021
306,978 66,524
Financial liabilities c@AasE
Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
REBERAzEREE
2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Other payables (note 26) HAth e BR R (M 2E 26) 192,379 168,695
Due to subsidiaries BB E 81,060 84,789
Convertible notes IR EE 169,344 161,665

442,783 415,149
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39. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing borrowings, convertible notes and
cash and short term deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations or acquisitions. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade and bills receivables and trade and bills
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under
review, the Group’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board review
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

39. ¥EREEEERBEER

AEECTESRTAGREHEMEE - i
REBERBREREHER - ZFEMIAZ
TEENRA/TEELEEINBEE - A&
EEZEAMMBEEREE  MEEEKA
EB 2 BUKENESRAKRRE -

REEOEFE  AREZBRBTETE
AEMTAESE -

REAEEERIAZEIEZERARANRE
SRR FERBERBESEMRE o
ESERTRIBE S ERR < ERERAML
LU
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39. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
borrowings with floating interest rates. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings). There is no significant impact on other
components of the Group’s equity.

39. IKEREEEERNE (&)

RS
AEECHENESDEARESAPAEE
TEBMEE o AEELMERTESBTA
HHERI RS o

TRINEMBHMUBHAZ2BERT - &
B 2= T B 5 B ¥ A S [ PR AT DE R o2 R
Ea (ZBREFEEAEER 2EE) - §E
SEAMESS I U BEALE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
basis points before tax
EREA/  BRBUADGRE
(T~ &) / CRD)
HK$’000
FET
2007 —EBLF
Renminbi ARE 50 (1,075)
Renminbi ARE (50) 1,075
2006 t %A%
Renminbi AR 50 (684)
Renminbi AR (50) 684
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39. Financial Risk Management Objectives 39.

and Policies (Cont’d)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
Such exposures mainly arise from sales or purchases
by the Group’s operating units operating in Mainland
China in currencies other than the units’ functional
currency (i.e., RMB). The Group does not enter into
any hedging transactions in an effort to reduce the
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at
the balance sheet date to a reasonably possible
change in the exchange of rates of Euro, United
States Dollar and Japanese Yen, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities). There is no significant impact
on other components of the Group’s equity.

MEEREEERREE (&)

SRR

FEEPERZEERR - ZEEBREE
TREAESE2EBENUNEER (A
REI)MHINEBETHERRE - AREL
BT EEHRR S SRR EE 2z SNE R

B o
FRIFEFERMBUTBZERT B

B EIRBBEZEEERAREHHAE
BBRHBANER 2BBRED T (AREBEE
REEzAFERE) HAEEHEMEDS
HOAWBERZE o

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in in profit
exchange rates before tax
EEEHA BRBIADEFIZN
/ (REk) / CA2)
% HK$°000
FET
2007 —EEtHF
If Renminbi strengthens against Euro f§ AR# ZBEHE 5 (6,569)
If Renminbi strengthens against i AR X ETHE 5 (2,384)
United States Dollar
If Renminbi strengthens against i AR X HEFE 5 (538)
Japanese Yen
If Renminbi weakens against Euro HAREHRBERE (5) 6,569
If Renminbi weakens against United fi AR#¥ R ETEE (5) 2,384
States Dollar
If Renminbi weakens against 4§ ARX AEEE (5) 538
Japanese Yen
2006 —EERF
If Renminbi strengthens against Euro fist N R R A 5 5,385
If Renminbi strengthens against United fiti A ¥ %, T FHE 5 (1,396)
States Dollar
If Renminbi strengthens against f§AR®N BB E 5 340
Japanese Yen
If Renminbi weakens against Euro THARMHEERE (5) (5,385)
If Renminbi weakens against United fi AR¥HETEE (5) 1,396
States Dollar
If Renminbi weakens against Japanese {4 AR X ABEE (5) (340)

Yen
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39. Financial Risk Management Objectives

and Policies (Cont’d)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are analysed
by customer/counterparty and by geographical
region. At the balance sheet date, the Group has
certain concentrations of credit risk as 94% (2006:
25%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due from
the five largest customers of the Group.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of
funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool.
This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g.,
trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank loans and other borrowings. It is the
Group’s policy to renew its loan agreements with
Haier Finance or major local banks in Mainland China
upon the maturity of the Group’s short term bank
loans and other borrowings.

39. BIEREEEEREE (&)

FERRE
FEEEREERFERFZEFENTR
5 RBEAEEZHE  FMEZURK
FERETRZ2EFHAKBEERER
FFoltsh ZEBTEFEEREWRRRE
B MAKEZERARIEREK -

RAEEEMYBEE(BRREEREAEE
EHEERAEBEBWERENR) 2FERRTS
FEECZFERRRAXZHFEN &
BLEUMEEMBEE 2 REERR -

HRAEBEHEEZREERINERE
AR5 ALEMEERERIKE - SER
BEPEREREF RXZHFRERMEE
ToMe e REER AEBE—EEER
BEFE REALEEZERESERX
HA94% (ZEEEARE 125%) BEWARE
BZzEKREF -

FEAEERARREZRRZEERR
E-SBCHE  RUBRKRME22HE -

AEEEBHRABESTETRAERE
tERAR EEIAZEHEERMIAR
MBEEBIMEZEWIRR) 22H A X
REEEHRUARSRE -

AEEEEEBRTERREMEEER
BEHEMREBENE 2 FE - AEEZK
RREAEE2EPBERSEER ME
B EBAM BN PEARE TG RT
RN 2 BRI e
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39. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial
liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the
contracted undiscounted payments, is as follows:

39. BiIEREEEEREE (#)

REBES(HF)

RESER  BRETVERHMN

Eh=

METE K

EEHBABZBMAAANT :

2007
—BRLE
Beyond one
year or
Within no fixed
one year or terms of
on demand repayment Total
— g
—FRFERER EEEERD et
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Trade and bills payables EURZEZEREHIRZE 1,032,041 - 1,032,041
Other payables HhFE(SBR X
(note 26) (Ktzt26) 575,662 - 575,662
Interest-bearing
borrowings FTEEE 62,032 152,941 214,973
Convertible notes ARREE 170,000 - 170,000
1,839,735 152,941 1,992,676
2006
TEERF
Beyond one
year or
Within no fixed
one year or terms of
on demand repayment Total
—Efg ey
—FRPIZER BEEEERH mat
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Trade and bills payables FEWEZRAKREZE 1,210,013 = 1,210,013
Other payables HhE(SER
(note 26) (K1a£26) 625,512 - 625,512
Interest-bearing
borrowings STEMEE 58,000 78,800 136,800
Convertible notes Gl &t — 170,000 170,000
1,893,525 248,800 2,142,325
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39. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d)
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial
liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the
contracted undiscounted payments, is as follows:

39. BIEREEEEREE (&)

REBES(HF)
REER  BREATVWEFHNGIEGE - &
NEAMBEBEZIHEEASAOT ¢

2007
—RRtF
Beyond one
year or
Within no fixed
one year or terms of
on demand repayment Total
—F#&%
—FARARRER EEEERH et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Other payables HAhFE(SBR X
(note 26) (K1z£26) 192,379 - 192,379
Due to subsidiaries FEAT B BN R FRIR - 81,060 81,060
Convertible notes ARREE 170,000 - 170,000
362,379 81,060 443,439
2006
—EERE
Beyond one
year or
Within no fixed
one year or terms of
on demand repayment Total
—FRNEETE
—FRPIZER R st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FExT FET
Other payables HAth fETBR X
(note 26) (K1:£26) 168,695 — 168,695
Due to subsidiaries FEAT B A R FRIA — 84,789 84,789
Convertible notes AR RIS — 170,000 170,000
168,695 254,789 423,484
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39. Financial Risk Management Objectives
and Policies (Cont’d)
Capital management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group
is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the years
ended 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2006.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is total debt divided by the total equity. The
Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio not
exceeding 100%. Total debt includes interest-bearing
borrowings and convertible notes. The gearing ratios
as at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

39.

MEEREEEERREE (&)

BEXxER
AEFEAREE T ERRERNERAEER
FEEE RO RGERFRBRERL R » B
FHEBRARRFNRSEE -

AEERBLEEMRASEEERFARELER
28K o BESSRABERERE  REETRE
FRERRIRGTZRE » ARREBE RS
BITHR - AREBTZEMIIMERMERE
KREFIRR - BHE—ZFZE+LF+-A=1+—H
F_BERXE+_A=1t—HILEE  BH
B BURR 7t EEE) o

AEBRAEBEAR L R(AEHAERE
SRE)ERER - ARECHERERSE
BERLETBIB100% BB FREBET
EREERTHKRERE NEER  BFELX
EERWMT -

Group REE
2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE 214,973 136,800
Convertible notes AR EE 169,344 161,665
Total debt BREE 384,317 298,465
Total equity ERBAE 942,124 798,567
Gearing ratio BEERLER 1% 37%
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40. Post Balance Sheet Events

4.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 18 January
2008, the outstanding aggregate principal amount

of the convertible notes of HK$170 million was fully
converted, further details of which are set-out in note
28 to the financial statements.

Approval of the Financial Statements

The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on

24 April 2008.

40.

41.

HEBRRSHE

REERR R=FENF-A+/N\H X
1T{EZR #4458 170,000,000 /& T 2 AT 2 fL 22
BEEZHEGE  E—THBHNUHERM
£ 28 °

DIECE ek
HBREER-—BEN\FHA-THELE
SRR BRI -
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFEHERE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out

UTBINAEBzBELFRE EE  BER
LERRESHE  DRSZACTIR 2EERY
Bk WCEHERZEHIE

below.
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1-HIEE
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
“BELF “EERE “ETRF “EENE “ZT=F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FE7 FET FAET FAET FET
RESULTS E4
CONTINUING OPERATIONS K& %%
REVENUE & 8,549,239 6,901,705 5,541,136 4,523,857 3,337,938
Cost of sales SHER A (6,058,011)  (5,062,200)  (4,285,082)  (3,559,383) (2,489,154)
Gross profit EF| 2,491,228 1,839,505 1,256,054 964,474 848,784
Other income and gains H g A R = 34,521 42,960 10,614 10,115 6,869
Selling and distribution costs  $4€ & % 84 FL A (1,646,661)  (1,243,740) (804,783) (647,089) (470,829)
Administrative expenses THEHR (527,071) (401,679) (265,121) (146,918) (134,707)
Other expenses Hih&E A (5,993) (2,441) (6,017) - (121)
Finance costs 5= 2% (24,068) (11,109) (16,162) (6,145) (14,480)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RR%E AT A 321,956 223,496 174,585 174,437 235,516
Tax g (96,259) (39,710) (22,999) (20,209) (49,273)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM R EEE XK ZERN
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 55l 225,697 183,786 151,586 154,228 186,243
DISCONTINUED OPERATION B #K IE &% #7&
Profit/(loss) for the year froma B4R IE K& XK 2 F
discontinued operation AER / (E58) - 103,420 (479,068) 31,208 (21,783)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE
YEAR FREA/ (FB) 225,697 287,206 (327,482) 185,436 164,460
Attributable to: FEAL
Equity holders of the parent B} A B R#EIFA A 172,131 262,349 (363,751) 147,367 153,566
Minority interests DERRER 53,566 24,857 36,269 38,069 10,894
225,697 287,206 (327,482) 185,436 164,460
ASSETS, LIABILITIESAND ¥E - 8BRIEBRK
MINORITY INTERESTS RiEs
TOTAL ASSETS BEHAE 3,666,212 3,373,280 3,519,723 3,019,111 3,015,651
TOTAL LIABILITIES EEBE (2,724,088) (2,574,713)  (2,410,301)  (1,975,235) (2,175,887)
MINORITY INTERESTS DR RER (94,724) (154,448) (162,507) (261,387) (228,990)
847,400 644,119 946,915 782,489 610,774
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